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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes we are  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay l e t  us  con t inue.   Mr  Mokoena you 

are  s t i l l  under  the  oa th  you took yesterday okay.   A l r igh t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Morn ing  Mr  Mokoena.  

MR MOKOENA:   Morn ing  Advocate .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You have your  s ta tement  be fore  you  

tha t  i s  FS2;  Bund le  FS12 and we were  a t  page 349.  

MR MOKOENA:   Sor ry.   I  am sor ry  I  have got  i t  now.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Okay.   You  w i l l  reca l l  yes te rday Mr  

Mokoena you gave ev idence tha t  a t  a  s tage and  on the 

ins t ruc t ions o f  the  Nat iona l  Min is te r  the  payments  by  way 

o f  advance payments  to  supp l ie rs  s topped.  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Do you what  the  MEC Mr  Zwane ’s  

a t t i tude was to  tha t  d i rec t ion  o f  the  Min i s te r ;  the  Nat iona l  20 

Min is te r?  

MR MOKOENA:   Wel l  in  the  meet ing  he  was in  ag reement  

w i th  tha t  s ta tement  and I  th ink  he  was say ing  tha t  we are  

go ing  to  imp lement  ou r  under tak ing  tha t  we were  go ing  

s top .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  wou ld  you look a t  parag raph  

29 p lease o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR MOKOENA:   Bu t  when we got  home… 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t  sor ry  I  in te r rup ted .   Yes 

when you got  home? 

MR MOKOENA:   Bu t  when we go t  home he came back to  

me and sa id  no  we are  cont inu ing  we are  no t  go ing  to  s top  

and tha t  we w i l l  con t inue w i th  our  p ro jec t  up  un t i l  the  end  

o f  the  f inanc ia l  yea r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .   Because overn igh t  the  10 

lega l  team looked  a t  the  Open Waters  Repor t .  

MR MOKOENA:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Do you know tha t  Open Waters  was 

an ent i t y  tha t  was br ie fed  to  inves t iga te  by  way o f  fo rens i c  

aud i t  the  prepayments  i ssue?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  heard  about  tha t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The i r  repor t  says tha t  payments  d id  

in  fac t  cont inue by  way o f  the  cess ion  payments .   D id  you 

know anyth ing  about  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  or  d id  no t?  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  do  no t  know about  tha t  because 

accord ing  to  me and my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  when we sa id  

we are  coming home to  s top  we s topped tha t  month  end o f  
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February  because the  meet ing  w i th  the  Min i s te r  was in  

February.   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t  we w i l l  look  a t  –  I  w i l l  look  

a t  the  de ta i l  o f  tha t  and see what  ev idence there  is  in  tha t  

repor t  and we w i l l  pu t  i t  be fore  the  Cha i r.   But  you say you 

know noth ing  about  tha t .  

MR MOKOENA:   I  know noth ing  about  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  you  wou ld  go  p lease to  pa rag raph  

34.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Be fore  tha t  how long a f te r  tha t  meet ing  

invo l v ing  the  Nat iona l  Min is te r  was  i t  when Mr  Zwane came 

back to  you and sa id  the  advance payments  shou ld  

cont inue?  

MR MOKOENA:   I t  was about  four teen days a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry?  

MR MOKOENA:   About  four teen days a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About  two weeks a f te r.  

MR MOKOENA:   About  two weeks  a f te r  we came f rom the  

meet ing  w i th  the  Min is te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  –  d id  he  exp la in  to  you why  he was 

chang ing  h i s  m ind now about  th is  i ssue?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  asked h im  tha t  as  we took an  
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under tak ing  why now are  you chang ing .   He sa id  tha t  we 

s t i l l  need to  ensure  tha t  we spend  w i th in  tha t  t ime up unt i l  

the  end o f  the  f inanc ia l  yea r.   Okay we l l  we can spend le t  

us  spend.   So he was focuss ing  more  on  spend ing  and not  

on  the  commi tment  tha t  we have made to  the  Min i s te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   

MR MOKOENA:   There fo re ,  I  thought  tha t  tha t  was 

inco r rec t  to  undermine what  you have ag reed on and then  

you come back w i thout  even in fo rming the  par t ies  tha t  you 

are  w i th  tha t  you are  chang ing  your  s tand now.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MOKOENA:   Because chang ing  a  s tand fo r  me wou ld  

no t  have been in  good pr inc ip le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   But  tha t  same issue tha t  he  was 

ra is ing  tha t  there  was a  need to  spend money tha t  was 

someth ing  tha t  he  –  he  knew and  I  am – I  am a lmost  su re  

he  had in i t ia l l y  expressed a t  the  meet ing  w i th  the  Nat iona l  

Min is te r.   Namely  tha t  he  thought  there  was a  need to  – or  

fo r  the  –  fo r  the  payments  to  cont inue.   He had ra ised tha t  

i ssue w i th  the  Nat iona l  Min i s te r  a t  the  mee t ing  bu t  20 

u l t imate ly  the  Na t iona l  Min is te r  wanted to  hear  no th ing  o f  

i t .  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And your  meet ing  w i th  h im when he –  he  

sa id  tha t  the  payments  shou ld  con t inue how d id  i t  end? 
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MR MOKOENA:   I t  ended on a  sour  no te  because… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOKOENA:   I  to ld  h im tha t  I  w i l l  no t  s ign  anyth ing  

beyond tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MOKOENA:   Which  must  advance money to  mater ia l  

supp l ie rs  anymore  a f te r  the  end o f  February  2011.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   D id  he  ind ica te  what  he  was go ing  

to  do  next  now tha t  you were  no t  p repared to  s ign  fu r ther  

payments?  10 

MR MOKOENA:   Not  tha t  I  can reca l l  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   A t  tha t  s tage were  you no  longer  

scared tha t  he  wou ld  say you mus t  submi t  your  res ignat ion  

le t te r?  

MR MOKOENA:   A t  tha t  s tage he was not  ta lk ing  about  the  

res ignat ion  le t te r  anymore .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He was not  ta lk ing  about  i t?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes s ince  a f te r  the  meet ing  w i th  the  

Nat iona l  Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MOKOENA:   He never  spoke about  tha t  res ignat ion  

le t te r  anymore .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  he  was unhappy tha t  you were  

no t  p repared to  au thor i se  fu r ther  payments?  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Pre to r ius .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   In  paragraph 29  

i f  we cou ld  jus t  go  back you put  on  record  some o f  you r  

susp ic ions bu t  as  w i th  fo rmer  ev idence tha t  you gave 

yesterday I  unders tand you have no fac ts  rea l l y  to  back up  

your  susp ic ions in  parag raph 29?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t  le t  us  go  to  paragraph 34.   

When you le f t  as  Head o f  Depar tment  you were  rep laced i t  

i s  common cause  by  Mr  Mokhes i .  10 

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And were  you invo lved then in  the 

prepara t ion  fo r  the  d isc ip l inary  hear ings tha t  we have been 

to ld  about?  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  was not  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  you tes t i f y  a t  those d isc ip l inary  

hear ings?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes I  d id .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R igh t .   Do you know why ce r ta in  

peop le  were  se lec ted  fo r  d isc ip l ine  and o the r  were  no t?   20 

F i rs t  o f  a l l  who d id  the  se lec t ion?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  cannot  answer  conf ident ly  because I  was 

not  work ing  a t  the  depar tment  a t  tha t  s tage there fo re ,  I  do  

no t  know who i s  the  pe rson who se lec ted  the  persons tha t  

were  proposed to  go  to  the  hear ing  or  d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Bu t  who was u l t imate ly  d i sc ip l ined  

and d ismissed?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  th ink  there  were  s ix  fo rmer  co l leagues.   

I t  was Me Manike  Moge le  and Dada Ka izer  Maxatshwa and  

Dada Kabe lo  Ko lo i ,  Dada Loy i so  Ndenze,  Dada Twale  and 

MinaguNgufa  Magaute  who is  now deceased.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A t  the  t ime o f  the  d isc ip l inary  

hear ings where  were  you employed? 

MR MOKOENA:   A t  tha t  t ime I  was employed a t  Mangaung  

Met ropo l i tan  Mun ic ipa l i t y  as  the  Head o f  Depar tment  fo r  10 

Human Set t lemen ts .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R igh t .   Do you know a  person  

Roche l le  E l l s?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes I  do  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  she const ruc t  houses?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And d id  she get  cont rac ts  f rom the  

Depar tment  Free S ta te?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  the  MEC Mr  Zwane ever  te l l  you  20 

anyth ing  about  tha t  par t i cu la r  cont rac tor  and her  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Premie r?  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What  d id  he  te l l  you?  

MR MOKOENA:   He to ld  me tha t  we must  ensure  tha t  th is  
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con t rac tor  ge ts  cont rac t  to  bu i ld  houses in  Kroonstad 

because tha t  i s  an  ins t ruc t ion  f rom the  Premie r.   And when  

the  pro jec ts  had s tar ted  runn ing  when t ime comes  fo r  the  

c la ims to  be  submi t ted  he  wou ld  come and te l l  me tha t  we 

must  exped i te  the  c la ims because  the  Premier  wan ts  to  be 

–  tha t  c la ims to  be  exped i ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  wou ld  tha t  be  Mr  Zwane coming to  

you when c la ims had been logged,  he  wou ld  come and say  

you must  exped i te  Ms Roche l le  E l l s ’ c la ims because the  

Premie r  has sa id  they shou ld  be  exped i ted?  10 

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A nar ra t i ve  Mr  Mokoena tha t  you 

have put  be fo re  the  Cha i r  yes te rday and today invo lves a  

member  o f  the  P rov inc ia l  Cab ine t .   Invo lved the  Nat iona l  

Treasury  and the  Nat iona l  Min i s te r  and you have spoken 

about  severa l  meet ings a t  wh ich  sen ior  o f f i c ia ls  were  in  

a t tendance.   You wou ld  have to  say yes a  b i t  louder.  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  conce ive  then tha t  20 

a l l  th is  happened w i th in  a  bubb le  and no-one e lse  w i th in  

the  Prov ince knew what  was  happen ing .   Do you  

unders tand the  po in t  I  am mak ing?  

MR MOKOENA:   No Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   No.   The members  o f  the  Prov inc ia l  
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Cab ine t .  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I t  i s  p robab le  jus t  on  the  face  o f  i t  

and  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  exp lore  th is  w i th  you tha t  o ther  peop le  

in  the  Cab ine t  wou ld  have known as we l l .  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .   Now I  unders tand .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .   What  do  you know about  

tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  th ink  in  the  meet ing  o f  the  EXCO i t  was 

ra ised by  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  in  one meet ing  tha t  these 10 

mater ia l s  –  advance mater ia l  scheme is  no t  co r rec t  and  

tha t  i s  money a l ready tha t  has been depos i ted  f rom our  

account  in to  the  accounts  o f  the  mater ia l  supp l ie rs  and 

tha t  was in  a  mee t ing  o f  the  EXCO when i t  was ra ised.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   EXCO what  body is  tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   EXCO is  the  Execut ive  Cab ine t  Meet ing  o f  

the  MEC’s  w i th  the  Premie r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R igh t .   So as  fa r  as  you were  aware  

the  EXCO at  leas t  wou ld  have known about  the  issues to  

wh ich  you have tes t i f ied .   A t  leas t  a t  a  genera l  leve l .  20 

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And they wou ld  have known about  

the  f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions tha t  were  ra ised by  Nat iona l  

Treasury?  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And tha t  ma t te r  was d i scussed?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  mat te r  was d iscussed.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Were  you a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  was a t  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What  was the  Premier ’s  a t t i tude to  

what  was happen ing?  

MR MOKOENA:   She d id  no t  come up w i th  what  –  what  can 

I  say  –  a  conc lus ive  de ta i led  dec is ion  about  wha t  to  do  

about  i t  –  about  tha t  i tem as i t  was d iscussed.   And I  th ink 

the  person came espec ia l l y  fo r  tha t  f rom the  Nat iona l  10 

Depar tment  o f  Treasury  to  come and in fo rm the  EXCO in  

tha t  meet ing  on  the  day.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .   Who was on the  EXCO can 

you jus t  g ive  us  as  much as  you can remember?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  th ink  a l l  members  o f  EXCO and they are  

a l l  MEC’s .   A l l  Heads o f  Depar tments  I  th ink  were  there .   

CFO’s  as  we l l  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And was the  Premie r?  

MR MOKOENA:   And the  Premier  who was there  was  

cha i r ing  the  meet ing .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes who was the  Premier?  

MR MOKOENA:   The Premier  was Mr  Magashu le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Now there  wou ld  obv ious l y  be  

m inutes  o f  EXCO meet ings?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wou ld  th is  mat te r  have been 

repor ted  on  Cab ine t  a t  Cab ine t  leve l  –  Prov inc ia l  Cab ine t  

leve l?  

MR MOKOENA:   Th i s  mat te r  shou ld  have been repor ted  

there  I  agree.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .   And there  wou ld  be  

minutes  o f  those meet ings?  

MR MOKOENA:   There  wou ld  a l so  be  minutes  o f  those 

meet ings as  we l l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wou ld  you in  your  capac i ty  as  HOD 10 

have submi t ted  repor ts  to  the  MEC,  to  EXCO or  to  the  

Prov inc ia l  Cab ine t?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes i f  there  were  i tems tha t  we wanted to  

be  d i scussed and ag reed upon we wou ld  wr i te  our  own  

memo,  submi t  to  the  EXCO as a  repor t  o r  as  a  memo and  

then i t  wou ld  be  d iscussed a t  tha t  leve l  and be approved or  

d isapproved a t  tha t  leve l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  you wr i te  repor ts  a t  th is  t ime? 

MR MOKOENA:   On th is  mat te r  no .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   No?  20 

MR MOKOENA:   No.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Any reason fo r  tha t  impor tan t  

mat te r?  

MR MOKOENA:   Impor tan t  mat te r  yes  bu t  i t  was  –  as  i t  

was ra ised by  the  Nat iona l  Depar tment  in  the  meet ing  i t  



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 14 of 130 
 

ended up there .   They d id  no t  focus [00 :15 :34] .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You say there  was no need fo r  you 

to  do  so?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  th ink  i t  d id  no t  come to  my mind  tha t  I  

shou ld  wr i te  a  repor t  about  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  when th is  mat te r  came up  

before  the  EXCO tha t  you have now descr ibed  a t  tha t  

meet ing  tha t  you have now descr ibed was there  no  

ins t ruc t ion  tha t  came f rom EXCO sor t  th is  mat te r  ou t  as  a  

mat te r  o f  u rgency? 10 

MR MOKOENA:   I  cannot  reco l l ec t  any dec is ion  taken 

wh ich  was task ing  me to  make a  repor t  on  tha t  mat te r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Anyway,  I  unders tand tha t  a l l  

repor ts  made to  EXCO,  the  Cab ine t ,  the  Premier  m inutes  o f  

a l l  re levant  meet ings w i l l  be  a  mat te r  o f  record  and those  

records shou ld  be  a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  the  Prov ince in  

B loemfonte in?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A re  there  any o ther  documents  tha t  

you can th ink  o f  tha t  wou ld  record  the  events  o f  2010/2011  20 

in  re la t ion  to  the  ev idence you have g iven?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  th ink  the  most  conf ident ia l  document  fo r  

me tha t  I  th ink  cou ld  he lp  us  w i th  in fo rmat ion  is  the  repor t  

f rom the  BAS B-A-S the  sys tem tha t  captures  and  records  

a l l  the  t ransact ions o f  a l l  the  mater ia l  tha t  we have  
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supp l ied .   How much d id  we pay out?   To  wh ich  con t rac tor?   

When?  And the  –  i t  must  a lso  show the  –  the  bank account  

o f  where  the  money went .   So tha t  i s  why I  was propos ing  

tha t  i f  we cou ld  ge t  f rom the  Nat iona l  Treasury  the  record  

o f  December  2010 and December  2011 sure ly  f rom there ,  

we can p ick  up  a l l  the  cont rac tors  and a l l  the  mater ia l  

supp l ie rs  tha t  we have supp l ied .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And th is  in fo rmat ion  is  BAS;  B-A-S?  

MR MOKOENA:   Th is  in fo rmat ion  comes out  o f  the  BAS 

sys tem.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And tha t  i s  the  f inanc ia l  sys tem 

where  a l l  payments  are  recorded?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Inc lud ing  o f  P rov inces?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And i t  res ides w i th  Nat iona l  

Treasury  you say? 

MR MOKOENA:   And i t  res ides  w i th  Nat iona l  Treasury  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A f te r  Mr  Zwane had proposed h i s  20 

“so lu t ion”  in  quo tes  fo r  the  prob lem tha t  the  Depar tment  

was fac ing  in  re la t ion  to  th is  mat te r  namely  fa i l ing  to  spend 

the  money tha t  i t  had been a l loca ted  fo r  low cost  hous ing  

do you know whe ther  there  was a  repor t  tha t  he  –  a  wr i t ten  

repor t  tha t  he  may have submi t ted  to  the  Execut ive  Counc i l  
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the  Prov inc ia l  Cab ine t  o r  to  the  Premier  wh ich  wou ld  have  

se t  ou t  what  the  so lu t ion  i s  and  what  was go ing  to  be  

done?  Whether  i t  i s  a  repor t  o r  a  memo do you know 

whethe r  there  was such a  document?  

MR MOKOENA:   Cha i r  in  as  fa r  as  I  can reca l l  no  

document  was wr i t ten  in  tha t  d i rec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You cannot  remember.  

MR MOKOENA:   To  the  Cab ine t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We have heard  o f  the  quote  

“so lu t ion”  unquote  tha t  was p roposed and imp lemented in  

o rder  to  ensure  tha t  money was spent  be fo re  the  year  end  

and the  budgetary  a l loca t ion  was not  los t  and pr inc ipa l l y,  

we have heard  about  the  prepayments  made to  supp l ie rs .  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And we  have a lso  heard  about  

money pa id  to  supp l ie rs  fo r  onward  t ransmiss ion  to  the  

cont rac tors ,  do  you know about  tha t?   The so  ca l led  20 

br idg ing  f inance payments .  

MR MOKOENA:   No –  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t  one.   B r idg ing  

f inance.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  there  is  ev idence and i t  has  

been conf i rmed tha t  some o f  the  money pa id  to  supp l ie rs  
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was t ransmi t ted  onwards somet imes in  cash to  cont rac to rs .   

Do you know anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  do  no t  know anyth ing  o f  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You sure?  

MR MOKOENA:   Because fo r  me the  money tha t  was sent  

to  –  in to the  accounts  o f  the  mater ia l  supp l ie rs  was jus t  fo r  

mater ia l s  and cou ld  no t  be  br idg ing  f inance.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   No o f  course  i t  cou ld  no t  bu t  

no tw i ths tand ing  tha t  money was never the less  pa id .  

MR MOKOENA:   Then i t  was out  o f  my cont ro l  then i t  was 10 

not  b rought  to  my  a t ten t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t  bu t  tha t  i s  –  those f ind ings 

are  on  record  and they have been  conf i rmed.   Do you know 

anyth ing  –  do  you  unders tand what  a  r igh t  o f  re ten t ion  is?  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  do  no t  unders tand.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t  so  in  the  cont rac t  tha t  i s  

en tered in to  be tween the  Depar tment  and the  cont rac tor,  

the  bu i lder  the  Depar tment  negot ia tes  fo r  and cont rac t s  fo r  

a  r igh t  o f  re ten t ion .   In  o ther  words,  i t  w i thho lds  money  

tha t  ought  to  be  pa id  to  the  cont rac tor  as  a  type o f  20 

insu rance po l i cy  so  tha t  i f  there  are  any de fec ts  the  work  i s  

no t  comple te  or  the  work  i s  no t  p roper ly  done there  is  

money tha t  can be drawn on to  meet  the  f inanc ia l  de f ic i t  

tha t  a r ises .   Do you know anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  the  re ten t ion .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R igh t  o f  re ten t ion  yes.  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You know tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes I  know tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  t ype o f  c lause in  a  bu i ld ing  

cont rac t?  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What  happened and th is  was found 

to  be  the  case in  the  d isc ip l ina ry  inqu i ry  i s  tha t  these 

r igh ts  o f  re ten t i on  were  abandoned and the  re ten t ion  10 

money was pa id  over  to  the  cont rac to rs  thus ensur ing  even  

more  money was pa id  ou t  even more  qu ick ly.   Do you know 

anyth ing  about  tha t?  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  do  no t  know about  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So  tha t  wou ld  have happened  

w i thout  you r  knowledge?  

MR MOKOENA:   I f  the  re ten t ion  is  pa id  be fo re  the  product  

i s  comple ted .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

MR MOKOENA:   Then tha t  wou ld  have been incor rec t .   I  20 

wou ld  no t  have agreed to  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Or  even pa id  be fore  the  t ime came 

fo r  payment  be fo re  de fec ts  in  the  bu i ld ing  wou ld  appear 

and before  the  t ime fo r  payment  o f  the  re ten t ion  money 

over  had occur red .   In  o ther  words,  a  p remature  payment  
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to  ensure  tha t  money was spent .  

MR MOKOENA:   No.   I  th ink  i n  the  recovery  p lan  we d id  

no t  have someth ing  l i ke  tha t  to  say tha t  now because we  

are  l i te ra l l y  push ing  to  spend we now have to  spend i t  in  

the  money tha t  i s  supposed to  be  re ta ined fo r  the  pro jec t .   

I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  no t  have been ag reed upon.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  i t  cou ld  no t  –  i t  m igh t  no t  have 

been ag reed upon but  there  i s  ev idence in  the  d isc ip l inary  

inqu i ry  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  happened.  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i t  happened.   I  have no knowledge o f  10 

tha t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You have g iven ev idence about  the  

MEC’s  invo l vement  in  the  se lec t ion  o f  cont rac tors .   D id  the 

same pr inc ip le  app ly  to  the  se lec t i on  o f  supp l ie rs?  

MR MOKOENA:   No not  on  supp l ie rs  i t  was on ly  on  

cont rac tors  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Do you  know o f  the  War  Room 

meet ings?  

MR MOKOENA:   Yes I  know.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  you a t tend the  War  Room 20 

meet ing  

MR MOKOENA:   I  d id  a t tend some o f  them.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What  were  these meet ings?  

MR MOKOENA:   These meet ings  were  l i ke  pro jec t  o f f i ce  

where  we gathe r  in fo rmat ion  about  our  p ro jec ts .   What  –  a t  
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what  s tage are  we w i th  d i f fe ren t  p ro jec ts  and f rom there  we  

wou ld  record  tha t  and then we fo l low up where  we th ink  

tha t  there  are  prob lems tha t  need  us  to  un lock  then we go  

there  and un lock .   Say fo r  ins tance there  is  a  p rob lem a t  a  

Mun ic ipa l i t y  leve l  wh ich  b locks  th is  p ro jec t  f rom mov ing  

then we w i l l  task  one pe rson to  go  to  tha t  Mun ic ipa l i t y  and  

ta lk  to  them so tha t  tha t  p rob lem can be so l ved.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  these War  Room meet ings 

mon i to r  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  ear ly  payment  o r  

advance payment  scheme? 10 

MR MOKOENA:   No i t  i s  be fore  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Sor ry?  

MR MOKOENA:   The War  Room came befo re  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes bu t  a t  a  s tage the  War  Room 

meet ings a l so  mon i to red  the  –  the  ear l y  payment  scheme.  

MR MOKOENA:   Cor rec t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A t  a  la te r  s tage.   I f  you  wou ld  bear  

w i th  me Cha i r  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  ge t  a  re ference to  pu t  to  

–  you have g i ven ev idence about  Mr  Tsoamets i .  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   He cer ta in ly  on  the  ev idence tha t  

we have heard  p layed a  ro le  in  the  dev i s ing  and 

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  scheme –  the  ear ly  payment  scheme 

–  the  advance payment  scheme.  

MR MOKOENA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Do you  know why he was not  

d isc ip l ined?  

MR MOKOENA:   No I  do  no t  know why because I  was now 

work ing  a t  the  Mun ic ipa l i t y  in  Mangaung I  was no t  in  the 

Depar tment  any longer.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   D id  you  ever  repor t  to  anybody 

o ther  than Mr  Zwane about  your  d i ssa t is fac t ion  and 

oppos i t ion  to  the  advance payment  scheme? 

MR MOKOENA:   Cha i r  no .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You d id  no t  th ink  i t  appos i te  to  10 

repor t  to  the  Premier  in  tha t  regard?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  was s t i l l  coming there .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r igh t .    

MR MOKOENA:   No I  d id  no t  ta lk  to  anyone e lse  because I  

thought  –  what  came to  my mind was tha t  I  shou ld  ta lk  to  

someone who was go ing  to  adv i se  me and then I  thought  

tha t  look ing  a t  the  s i tua t ion  the  Premie r  w i l l  be  a  be t te r  

person because the  Premier  i s  a lso  a  boss to  my MEC.   

Then tha t  i s  the  person I  t r ied  to  ge t  ho ld  o f  same day 

when we came f rom the  meet ing  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  MEC.   20 

A f te r  tha t  meet ing  when I  rea l i sed tha t  we  are  a t  

loggerheads w i th  MEC then I  went  down to  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  

Premie r  jus t  to  check when i t  was  poss ib le  fo r  me to  meet  

h im.   And i t  was unfor tunate l y  no t  poss ib le .   And then a f te r  

I  was there  I  went  aga in  s tood in  the  queue there  wa i t ing  
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fo r  h im up unt i l  n ine  in  the  even ing  the  queue was s t i l l  l ong 

then he sa id  –  they sa id  we must  come the  fo l low ing day.   

So i t  con t inued days a f te r  days –  a  week –  second week  

and then I  s topped fo l low ing i t  –  pursu ing  i t .   Because I  

thought  tha t  was the  re levant  person to  he lp  me out  o f  th is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Cha i r  I  am jus t  dea l ing  w i th  no tes  

g iven to  me by the  lega l  team i f  you wou ld  bear  w i th  me? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine .   So Mr  Mokoena the  hous ing  

un i ts  tha t  were  meant  to  be  bu i l t  in  2010/2011 f inanc ia l  

year  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  to  da te  they have not  been  bu i l t  o r  10 

have they s ince  been bu i l t  a f te r  you had le f t?  

MR MOKOENA:   I  am not  sure  Cha i r  because what  we t r ied  

to  do  was to  agree w i th  Nat iona l  to  come and he lp  us  so  

tha t  we cou ld  tu rn  as  much as  poss ib le  f rom the  amount  o f  

money and the  mater ia l s  in to  un i ts .   And when  I  le f t  

Nat iona l  was s t i l l  there .   Was s t i l l  work ing  very  c lose  w i th  

our  co l leagues espec ia l l y  in  the  War  Room.   So my  

unders tand ing  is  tha t  by  the  t ime I  le f t  most  o f  those –  

some o f  those un i ts  shou ld  have  – cou ld  have been bu i l t  

bu t  no t  most .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  you  wou ld  look p lease a t  para  59  

on page 113 o f  Bund le  FS14.   That  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  bund le .  

MR MOKOENA:   Not  th is  one?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Ja  no t  tha t  one.   Bund le  FS14  

beh ind  you.    
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MR MOKOENA :    Number?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Page 113.   I f  you can look at  

paragraph 59,  please.  

MR MOKOENA :    59? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Just  take a minute to read i t ,  p lease.  

MR MOKOENA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In essence,  what is said in the 

aff idavi t  of  Mr Mokhesi  in the review appl icat ion is that :  10 

“Mr Maxatshwa returned to Bloemfontein having 

at tended a meet ing.   Advised the then head of  the 

department ( that  is yoursel f ) ,  but  that  the 

department (your department) had been warned not  

to implement the expendi ture recovery plan.   

However,  Mr Mokoena instructed Mr Maxatshwa to 

proceed with the plan.”  

 And that  was found in the discipl inary hearing.   What do 

you say about that? 

MR MOKOENA :    I  th ink,  that  is not  correct .   Why I  say i t  is 20 

incorrect  is because when Mr Maxatshwa went  to that  

meet ing,  he went  on our behal f .   He knew al ready that  the 

MEC had already said you are not  to move away or you not  

ref rain f rom implement ing this project .    

 So here,  my understanding is that ,  i t  looks l ike I  am the 
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one who is pushing for these projects to cont inue.   I t  is not  

the MEC.  So I  d isagree wi th i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Right .   He does explain over the 

page on page 114 that  the instruct ion that  he is referr ing to  

is the memorandum prepared by Mr Tsoametsi  and s igned by 

him and yoursel f  on the 25t h of  November.   You have given 

evidence about the ci rcumstances of  that  memorandum. 

MR MOKOENA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  th ink,  th is narrat ive is  

a narrat ive I  had always when I  was wi tnessing at  the 

hearing,  the disc ipl inary hearing.   I t  is an incorrect  narrat ive.  10 

I t  takes the logic and puts i t  on his head.    

 We know that  the or ig in of  the scheme that  we had a 

meet ing in the MEC’s off ice.   The inst ruct ion to Mr Tsoametsi  

to prepare a document came f rom that  meet ing.    

 Now for me today to come and say a di fferent  version 

here that  I  am the one who instructed Mr Tsoamets i  to wr i te  

th is internal  document,  l inked the inst ruct ion to Mr 

Maxatshwa.   

 I  th ink here the logic is not  l inking.   That  is why I  am 

saying that  the logic is standing on i ts head here.   Thank 20 

you,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    When the employers who were 

ul t imately dismissed,  were f i rst  suspended, were you st i l l  in  

the off ice? 

MR MOKOENA :    No,  Chai r.   I  was out  of  off ice at  that  stage.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Just  bear wi th me a moment.  

MR MOKOENA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    The f indings,  and you can look at  

FS19 i f  you want  to check.   I  am going to read i t  to you 

anyway.   At  page 757 for the record.   The f indings of  the 

discipl inary inqui ry deal  wi th the retent ion clause,  none-

enforcement or abandonment.    

 And in paragraph 396 of  the discipl inary f indings,  i t  

reads. . .  Refer to  a paragraph of  the ERP which we are 

looking for but  i t  is not  at  hand at  the moment.   I t  is recorded 10 

that :  

“ I t  was decided that  the retent ion clause be retained 

in the contract  but  not  be enforced these pro jects to  

ensure expendi ture and cash f low for the 

contractor” .  

 So in order to ensure that  the cont ractor receive money 

but  also to ensure that  the department spend as much money 

as possib le,  that  retent ion clause was abandoned.   I  just  

wanted to put  that  before you.   You st i l l  do not  have any 

knowledge of  that? 20 

MR MOKOENA :    I  st i l l  do not  have any knowledge of  i t  

Chairperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Do you have anything to  add to your 

evidence that  I  perhaps have not  asked you and you wish to 

place before the Chair? 
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MR MOKOENA :    From my aff idavi t ,  I  th ink we have covered 

al l  the areas of  importance that  I  requested that  they be 

covered as part  of  my evidence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Thank you.   Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    What would you say i f  somebody comes 

before the Commission Mr Mokoena and say you have down-

played your ro le  in th is matter and that  you were a much  

more act ive role player than you seem to want everybody to  

bel ieve?  What would your response be to that? 

MR MOKOENA :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  th ink the f i rst  th ing 10 

would be.   The second point  of . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  am talking especial ly  wi th  special  

reference to . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MOKOENA :    My singing of  the two documents? 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .Mr Zwane’s “so lut ion” and that  you were 

much more act ive,  at  least ,  maybe f rom a certain stage 

onwards than you may be making i t  out  to be.  

MR MOKOENA :    Chai r,  I  th ink the start ing point  for me 

would be that  I  d isagree wi th that  vers ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 20 

MR MOKOENA :    And that  the or ig in of  th is scheme came 

with the MEC as advised.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR MOKOENA :    So i f  i t  was not  him being advised as 

whereby the person and the source that  he never wanted to 
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d isclose to me, then I  would have said that  I  was act ively 

involved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR MOKOENA :    Because I  am the person who were 

supposed to work very close wi th h im and advise him about  

Human Sett lement  issues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR MOKOENA :    Because I  have been in the business for  

more years than he was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  10 

MR MOKOENA :    That  is  my start ing point .   My second point  

is that ,  when i t  was a lready been detected that  we are doing 

wrong about th is  scheme, st i l l  when you come back f rom 

there,  he wants us to cont inue.   Then i f  I  am with him, I  

would have said no in February to  stop the scheme or the 

implementat ion for the scheme.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

MR MOKOENA :    And then three.   The research that  was 

done, i t  is because I  am the one who said that  th is scheme is  

bordering on i l legal ly.   Therefore,  we cannot implement i t .   20 

So that  is why he instructed Mr Tsoametsi .    

 So i t  is not  me who instructed Mr Tsoametsi .   So on 

those three key points,  I  am st i l l  saying that  my evidence is 

that  i t  looks l ike here I  was corral led into a corner  wi th a 

plan that  was wel l -orchestrated beforehand.   
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 And for me get t ing to that  meet ing,  i t  was me get t ing 

into a t rap and I  th ink I  was on top of  the t rap.   Real is ing in  

the meet ing that  everyone else was not  speaking.    

 So that  quietness was qui te uncomfortable for me,  

especial ly coming f rom the CFO who should be support ing 

me in the meet ing because I  am arguing in terms of  the 

procurement procedures.    

 She should have come in and said,  I  am r ight .   Can you 

not  see this  is not  possible?  This is  wrong.   This cannot 

happen. But  she was quiet ,  s i t t ing there.   And al l  the other  10 

col leagues were quiet .    

 So on that  note,  I  would therefore say,  i f  i t  was. . .  i f  I  had 

power,  I  would have said that  maybe I  am not  the only 

person who f inds himsel f  in these ci rcumstances.    

 I  would recommend that  there must  be some kind of  a. . .  

I  do not  know how to put  i t  now.   Administ rat ive t ru th(?) for  

an avenue which was avai lable to  each and every off ic ia l ,  

each and every manager when you are in the ci rcumstance 

where I  was forced to do things that  you feel  l ike this is  

i l legal .    20 

 Then you can touch a but ton or you can submit  your,  

what I  would cal l ,  an intervent ion request .   I f  you could have 

something l ike that ,  I  th ink we can save South Af r ica a lot  of  

money because I  th ink in pract ise i t  is also the same 

problem.  In other department of  the province I  th ink the 
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same problem.  So that  could help.    

 I  am just  t ry ing to th ink out  loud now that  i f  we could 

have a plat form or a st ructure that  is in the presidency 

because I  th ink that  is the highest  o ff ice.    

 And that  in that  s t ructure,  we must  serve people who is  

competent  in terms of  procurement,  in terms of  legal ,  in  

terms of  communicat ion,  and in terms of  invest igat ions.    

 So that  i f  you submit  your intervent ion request ,  they can 

respond quickly and then br ing the two part ies to val idate 

whether i t  is t rue or not .   And then they can take act ion at  10 

that  t ime.   

 But  th is st ructure must  not  just  look at  serving this 

problem that  I  am put t ing here.   I  th ink i t  must  have at  least  

three focus areas.    

 One, i t  must  be stop f rom the source,  the inst ruct ions 

and the wri t ing of  documents.   Two, i t  must  also look at  how 

to professional ise the whist le-blowing programme.   

 Because there is  a whist le-b lowing programme there but  

i t  is stuck in delays in the terms of  bureaucracy.   And then 

three,  also to ensure that  we br ing that  c lose and 20 

professional ise the last  audi t  in i t iat ive.    

 I f  they can br ing those three things together,  that  wi l l  

help us a lot .   And the wasteful  expendi ture that  we are 

having,  i t  can be stopped by i t  because you are strangulat ing 

the f rui t less act iv i ty r ight  f rom the start  where the 
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instruct ions come.    

 Because the source is the instruct ion.   Someone 

instructs the other person to do. . .  to give some examples.   

He or she is not  s igning a pet i t ion.    

 I  am not  party to the procurement processes but  a l ready 

upstream, you have al ready condi t ioned this project  how to 

ro le(?).   So I  th ink that  the problem is also the manager of  

the. . .   So that  is what I  propose Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You ment ioned in your evidence,  at  least  

three cont ractors,  I  th ink you said that  Mr Zwane seemed to 10 

be interested in.   Those were the ones,  I  th ink you said,  he 

would approach you and ask you to  expedi te  thei r  payments.   

Is that  r ight? 

MR MOKOENA :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   As af ter you had lef t ,  do you know i f  

those contractors st i l l  exist  or is that  something that  you do 

not  know? 

MR MOKOENA :    No,  I  am not  sure about that  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are not  sure.   Okay.  

MR MOKOENA :    Because by the t ime that  I  lef t  the off ice,  I  20 

did not  even take anything in my off ice.   I  lef t  a l l  the f i les 

and everything.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    Because I  knew that  al l  those the f i les are 

the property of  the department.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

MR MOKOENA :    And I  was going just  across the st reet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    To throw away.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR MOKOENA :    They wi l l  not  have me on anything.   I  would 

have come back and talk to them. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now, Mr Pretor ius ment ioned that  

there are indicat ions that  payments may have cont inued af ter  

your  meet ing wi th  the MEC and the Nat ional  Min ister.   You 10 

said you do not  know that  because you said that  you have 

taken the posi t ion there should be no further payments.   Do 

you remember that? 

MR MOKOENA :    Correct ,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is there a possibi l i ty that  payments may 

have happened without  your knowledge, wi thout  your  

author isat ion?  Is there such a pract ical  possibi l i ty that  

maybe somebody else,  other people wi thin the department 

may have cont inued to author ise payments wi thout  your 

knowledge? 20 

MR MOKOENA :    I t  is possible Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is possible? 

MR MOKOENA :    Possible.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The payment processed did not . . .  d id not  

always have to come to your at tent ion? 
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MR MOKOENA :    That  is t rue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  But  would you not  have told 

everybody concerned af ter your meet ing wi th  the Nat ional  

Minister and the MEC that  there should be no further  

advance payments anymore? 

MR MOKOENA :    We had a meet ing that  is announced that  

as we come back f rom the minister,  the feedback is  that  we 

must  stop th is pro ject .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    We must not  do this again,  nor other new 10 

t ransact ions must  go to suppl iers.   No new cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So i f  anybody author ised them af ter that ,  

then they would have done so knowing that  you had issued 

an inst ruct ion to say there should be no further payments? 

MR MOKOENA :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now, are you able to say that  the MEC, Mr 

Zwane, def in i te ly  knew that  his scheme was i l legal  or was 

requi r ing the department to do something i l legal?  Or is the 20 

posi t ion that  you bel ieve that  in h is view that  i t  was legal?  

Or are you able to say he may have say i t  was i l legal  but  he 

knew i t  was i l legal?  What is your posi t ion? 

MR MOKOENA :    My posi t ion is that  he knew i t  was i l legal .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MOKOENA :    Because the f i rst  t ime when he ment ioned 

i t ,  I  responded and I  to ld him that  i t  was i l legal .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    So he t r ied ways to ensure that  he 

convinces me about the legal i ty of  the scheme.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    So for me, then i t  shows that  he knew.   And 

the mere fact  that  he did not  want to inform us about  who is 

the person who advised him.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 10 

MR MOKOENA :    Then there is something that  he is hiding 

f rom us.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    Yes,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did he. . .  what were the reasons that  you 

told him as to why his scheme was i l legal?  What did you say 

to him in terms of  A,  B,  C,  D?  I t  is i l legal  because of  th is 

and this and that .   Just  repeat  that  to me.  

MR MOKOENA :    I  to ld him that  i t  was i l legal  because i t  was 

i l legal  because one,  the services is in government.   Yes,  you 20 

get  the service f i rst  as the government before you pay.   So 

this scheme is the very opposi te to that .   So this is i l legal .    

 And also,  number two is that ,  we do not  have the 

capaci ty wi thin the department.   We are st i l l  a  young 

department.   We cannot be able to run al l  those things 
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including what we were doing in the off ice at  that  stage.    

 And then I  th ink,  also f inal ly I  said,  in terms of  the 

supply management f rom the procurement point  of  v iew,  i t  

was incorrect .   I t  wi l l  come with th is of  a scheme.  I t  wi l l  not  

help us at  al l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id he counter your  reasons for  saying his  

scheme was i l legal  wi th anything?  In other words,  did he 

engage your reasons to say but  your reasons for saying the 

scheme is i l legal  are not  sound because of  A,  B,  C,  D? 

MR MOKOENA :    He did not  engage my contact .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR MOKOENA :    What he engaged was the form, the outside 

part .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

MR MOKOENA :    He said that  th is advice. . .  he has been 

advised,  he was advised by the person who is  

knowledgeable.   He is an expert  now.  So I  wanted to know,  

who is th is expert?   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  he never disc losed? 

MR MOKOENA :    And he never disc losed. 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    And the second thing that  he looked at  

then was,  because he real ised,  I  was not  moving,  I  was 

adamant.   Then he said,  let  us be. . .  because we know that  

th is is happening in other provinces.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  I f  he comes here and says:   I  never  

said. . .  I  would never have said a scheme should be carr ied 

out  that  I  knew to be i l legal .   I  was the MEC.  I  had taken an 

oath to  uphold the const i tut ion and the law.   What Mr 

Mokoena is saying is not  t rue.   I  do genuinely bel ieve that  

th is scheme was legal .   What would you say? 

MR MOKOENA :    Chai r,  I  would say that  what made him to 

ask Mr Tsoametsi  to go and do a research? 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  And you say the document that  

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

MR MOKOENA :    The document d id  not  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .was not . . .  d id not  ta lk to legal i ty.  

MR MOKOENA :    The legal i t ies,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR MOKOENA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Chai r,  ar is ing out  of  these quest ions,  

may I  just  put  one or two more? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    The evidence of  Mr Mokhesi  says 20 

that  he had d i ff icul ty in understanding or obtain ing 

informat ion in regard to what had happened pr ior  to him 

taking off ice in 2010/2011.  Did he ever ask for your 

cooperat ion? 

MR MOKOENA :    No,  Chairperson.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Did anybody actual ly come to you 

and say:   Please explain to us what  had happened? 

MR MOKOENA :    Is the f i rst  t ime today anyone else to  

discuss this matter,  today.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Real ly? 

MR MOKOENA :    S ince I  lef t  the off ice December 2011, no 

one has ever come to me to discuss,  invest igate,  interview 

or discuss wi th me th is matter.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Did you give evidence at  the inquiry? 

MR MOKOENA :    [No audible reply]   10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Were you asked to give evidence at  

the discipl inary inquiry? 

MR MOKOENA :    At  the d iscip l inary inquiry I  was a wi tness.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now in preparat ion for that ,  who 

spoke to you? 

MR MOKOENA :    For that  meet ing? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  

MR MOKOENA :    I  was just  to ld  that  I  must  come to a 20 

meet ing.   I  was not  br iefed properly.   I  was not  given 

documents.   I t  was just  that  I  must  come there and be part  of  

the discipl inary hear ings.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    No one sat  wi th you and said:   Look,  

we want to know what you know.   Let  us go through the 
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detai ls.  

MR MOKOENA :    The secretar ia t ,  the lawyer that  were 

running th is,  were the people who came to me.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And did they br ief  you beforehand? 

MR MOKOENA :    They br iefed me a day or  two before the 

hearing.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You understand that  as the head of  

the department,  you are the account ing off icer and you are 

therefore responsible in terms of  the PFMA, Publ ic Finance 

Management Act ,  for what happens under your command? 10 

MR MOKOENA :    That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And even i f  you do delegate,  you are 

st i l l  accountable.  

MR MOKOENA :    That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now, what is puzzl ing about the 

events of  2010/2011 and your department,  is that  there 

seems to be a blurr ing of  the l ines between your  role  and the 

ro le of  the MEC.   

 How do you understand the dist inct ion or the r id ing l ine 

between your funct ion and responsibi l i ty on the one hand 20 

and that  of  the MEC on the other?   

 Because you have given evidence to a great  extent  of  

what would seem to be a blurr ing of  the l ines of  the MEC 

enter ing onto your domain.   Please share your thoughts wi th  

the Chai r.  
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MR MOKOENA :    Thank you,  s i r.   I  th ink mainly,  I  fe l t  

st rangulated because for me, they exert  wi th author i ty  at  that  

part icular point .   And most of  the thing that  he was meddl ing 

in for me,  are the things or  the areas of  work that  belongs to 

me as the head of  the department.    

 I  th ink i t  was a del iberate p loy to  unset t le me so that  

when he comes to me with instruct ions that  I  must  take,  i t  

must  be instruct ions that  come f rom him and when i t  is me 

who according to  the PMFA who is responsible but  I  am 

referr ing to the things that  he is br inging into my area of  10 

work.    

 I  th ink he was doing this  del iberately.   He was aware 

that  he was get t ing to the. . .  he was get t ing insight  into the 

environment view which did not  be long to him.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What is  the environment of  an MEC 

as opposed to your environment?  What is the d ivid ing l ine?  

Can you descr ibe i t  br ief ly for us? 

MR MOKOENA :    Wel l ,  mainly,  the MEC wi l l  come with 

regulatory and the HOD wi l l  come the implementat ion.   When 

I  ta lk pageants,  i t  is only the HOD that  would talk pageants.   20 

When I  ta lk supply chain management procurement,  i t  is the 

HOD.   

 When I  ta lk management of  staff ,  i t  is the HOD.  So he 

was into al l  those areas and he I  th ink he was doing i t  

del iberately.   And I  th ink he was being advised f rom 



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 39 of 130 
 

somewhere.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    F ina l ly,  Mr Mokoena.  You gave 

evidence yesterday in relat ion to the ERP plan.   There is the 

sl ide presentat ion,  the summary of  the ERP plan.    

MR MOKOENA :    Correct ,  s i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you spoke expressly to the 

Chair  about  the cash f low project ion document.   Do you 

recal l  that  cash f low project ion document? 

MR MOKOENA :    I  recal l  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Would Mr Zwane had been aware of  10 

that? 

MR MOKOENA :    I  th ink because i t  was an ERP, we would 

have taken him through i t  because we wanted him to know 

what i t  is that  we are t ry ing to achieve.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you very much Mr Mokoena for  

coming to give evidence.   I f  needs be,  we wi l l  ask you to 

come back but  thank you very much.  You are excused for  

now.  

MR MOKOENA :    Thanks very much Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   We are at  two minutes to 

eleven.   But  i f  your next  wi tness is  ready,  we can start  but  i f  

you need some t ime.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Perhaps we should al low the t ime for 

the Jo 'burg.   Could we take an ear ly short  adjournment? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a lr ight .   Shal l  we just  make i t  our tea 

adjournment or. . .?  Shal l  we make i t  our tea adjournment 

al ready? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I f  you are happy wi th that  Chai r,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    From your side? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes,  i t  wi l l  g ive chance to do the 

handover.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Shal l  we say we resume at  quarter  

past  or shal l  I  g ive you more t ime? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Twenty past?  Would that  be 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Twenty past .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   We wi l l  resume at  twenty-

past  eleven then.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ready,  Mr  Pre tor ius .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.   The next  

w i tness is  Mr  Mph ike le i  Ka izer  Maxatshwa.   He is  lega l l y  

rep resented.   May h i s  representa t i ve  p lace h imse l f  on  

record?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV PIERRE MALAN:    [ ind is t inc t  –speak ing  o f f  m ic ]  my 

surname and Mr  Kabe lo  Ko lo i  who  has a lso  deposed to  an  

a f f idav i t  in  these proceed ings.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  do  you want  h im to  be  

sworn  in?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes p lease ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  10 

MR PHIKELEI  KAIZER MAXATSHWA:    My name is  

Mph ike le i  Ka izer  Maxatshwa.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

REGISTRAR :   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 20 

t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  so  he lp  

me God.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ,  you may be  seated.   

Cont inue,  Mr  Pre tor ius .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Maxatshwa 

wou ld  you look a t  bund le  FS12 a t  page 183?  We a re  

re fer r i ng  to  the  b lack  numbers  in  the  top  le f t  hand  corner  

o f  tha t  bund le  be fore  you.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  see ,  Cha i r,  my document  i s  s ta r t ing  

a t  184.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  they w i l l  ass is t  you.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r,  wou ld  you jus t  bear  w i th  us  

a  m inute?  Apparent ly,  we have ye t  anothe r  bung l ing  issue  

to  dea l  w i th .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  d id  t ry  and check some but  

20  000 pages was a  b i t  beyond us .   I s  tha t  document  in  

f ron t  o f  you now,  s i r?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Thank you,  Mr  Pre tor ius ,  I  have  now –  

on  page 183.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes and i f  you go th rough to  page  

212,  you w i l l  a  s ignature  on  tha t  page.    

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes I  am on 212.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Whose s ignature  i s  tha t?  20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  th is  document  f rom page 

183 to  212,  i s  tha t  your  a f f idav i t  p repared fo r  the  

Commiss ion?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Mr  Pre to r ius .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    As  fa r  as  you are  aware  are  the  

contents  o f  th is  a f f idav i t  t rue  and cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  the  exh ib i t  number  i s  EXHIBIT  

UU2.   May tha t  be  admi t ted?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mph ike le i  Ka ize r  

Maxatshwa s tar t i ng  a t  page 183 is  admi t ted  and w i l l  be 

marked as  EXHIBIT UU – d id  you say 2 ,  Mr . . .?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  Cha i r ,   UU2.  

CHAIRPERSON:    UU2,  okay.  10 

AFFIDAVIT  OF MPHIKELEI  KAIZER MAXATSHWA 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  UU2  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you .   Mr  Maxatshwa,  wou ld  

you p lease look  a t  paragraph 4  on  page 184 o f  you r  

a f f idav i t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  I  am a t  page 184.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   And you say  in  tha t  

parag raph tha t  you have read the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mokoena,  

you have read the  found ing  a f f idav i t  deposed to  by  Mr  

Mokhes i  in  the  rev iew app l i ca t ion  and you have read 20 

ex t rac ts  f rom the  ev idence g iven and the  d isc ip l inary  

proceed ings g iven by  Mr  Mokoena  and Mr  Nev i l le  Chaney,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you re fer  in  paragraph 5  to  
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cer ta in  d isc ip l ina ry  proceed ings the  resu l t  o f  wh ich  was 

tha t  you and some o f  your  co l leagues who were  employed  

in  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Human Set t lements  in  the  Free S ta te  

were  d i smissed.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say  in  paragraph 6  tha t  you  

have taken a  v iew tha t  you r  d ismissa l  was unfa i r  and you 

re fer  to  the  contents  o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  i s  the  s ta tus  o f  those  –  your  10 

cha l lenge to  the  d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings a t  the  moment?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r,  we a re  now a t  the  CCMA,  we 

have re fer red  the  mat te r  a f te r  ou r  d ismissa l  in  2015  but  the  

CCMA has not  ass is ted  us  up  unt i l  so  fa r.   There  has been 

so  many changes o f  Commiss ioners  on  our  case.   There  

was a  s tage where  the  ev idence bund les  o f  the  t ranscr ip t s  

were  los t  a t  the i r  o f f i ces .   Yes.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I t  seems a  very  long t ime tha t  has 

e lapsed before  you ac tua l l y  come before  and get  a  resu l t  

f rom the  CCMA.  20 

MR MAXATSHWA:    Yes,  Cha i r,  i t  has  been a  long t ime.   

Normal l y  they say jus t i ce  de layed is  jus t i ce  den ied .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Has tha t  been  over  the  what ,  seven  

years?   Has there  been no t ime when ora l  ev idence was 

led?  In  o the r  words,  no  ora l  ev idence has been led  a t  a l l  
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a t  the  CCMA? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    No ora l  ev idence has been led  a t  a l l  a t  

the  CCMA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Perhaps tha t  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  we  

cou ld  look in to ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  qu i te  long,  ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And cer ta in ly,  the  c i rcumstances  

g iv ing  r i se  to  the  de lays ,  los t  f i les  and the  l i ke .   In  any  

event ,  you a lso  re fer  in  paragraph  9  –  we l l ,  be fore  we go 10 

there ,  you re fe r  to  the  Open Waters  repor t .   Have you been  

g iven an oppor tun i ty  now to  peruse tha t  repor t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    We were  den ied  tha t  par t i cu la r  repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  am sor ry,  I  d id  no t…? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    We were  den ied  tha t  par t i cu la r  repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  i t  i s  ava i lab le .   We 

can make i t  ava i l ab le  to  you shou ld  you requ i re  i t .  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r,  i f  i t  i s  ava i lab le ,  we w i l l  g lad ly  

accept  i t  and s tudy i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 9  you re fer  to  an  20 

invest iga t ion  car r ied  ou t  by  the  Spec ia l  Invest iga t ion  Un i t .   

That  repor t  o f  the  S IU you say was never  fo rmal ly  

submi t ted  to  and adopted by  par l iament .   That  i s  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  you have rece ived.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  the  in fo rmat ion  we rece ived,  
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Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   In  any event  any  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  you do requ i re  can because made 

ava i lab le  to  you.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r,  w i l l  g lad ly  l i ke  the  ass i s tance o f  

the  Commiss ion  w i th  tha t  par t i cu la r  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 12 you l i s t  your  

qua l i f i ca t ions.   What  a re  they?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    Cha i r,  I  have jun io r  degree  in  law,  

B .Proc and an honours  degree in  law,  LLB,  bo th  f rom the  10 

Un ivers i t y  o f  Durban-Westv i l le  comple ted  in  1995.   I  a lso  

have an honours  in  Government  Reg iona l  P lann ing  f rom 

the  Un ive rs i t y  o f  the  Free S ta te .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You were  a  Mun ic ipa l  Manager  a t  

the  Nketoana Munic ipa l i t y  f rom 2000 to  2006,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then when were  you appo in ted  

to  the  Loca l  Government  and Hous ing  depar tment  in  the  

Free S ta te  Prov ince?  20 

MR MAXATSH WA:    A t  the  exp i ry  o f  my cont rac t  a t  

Nketoana I  was  appo in ted  a t  Free S ta te ,  the  Loca l  

Government  and Hous ing  depar tment  in  2006,  November.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  pos i t ion  d id  you  occupy 

then?  
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MR MAXATSHWA:    I  was a  Ch ie f  D i rec tor  i n  the  Loca l  

Government  b ranch.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    O f  the  Loca l  Government  and  

Hous ing?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    The Depar tment  o f  Loca l  Government  

and Hous ing ,  yes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And to  whom d id  you repor t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Then I  repor ted  to  Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  11 .15  

Konsan i (? ) .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And to  whom d id  tha t  person  10 

repor t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  person repor ted  to  MEC Mafereka  

then  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   So jus t  fo r  the  record ,  i s  i t  

my Ra l ikantsane tha t  you ment ioned now? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Mr  Ra l ikantsane.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  R-a- l - i - k -a -n- t - s -a-n -e .   H is  

f i rs t  Kopung,  K-o -p-u-n -g  and Mr  Joe Mafe reka,  M-a- f -e - r -

e -k -a ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  2009 we know tha t  Mr  

Magashu le  became Premier  and  Mr  Zwane became the  

MEC for  Loca l  Government  and Hous ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  head o f  depar tments  
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Human Set t lemen ts  was Mr  Mokoena.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The names o f  a l l  the  depar tments  

and pos i t ions  may be confus ing  because the re  were  

changes over  t ime.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Loca l  Government  and  

Hous ing ,  as  a  depar tment ,  was sp l i t  in to  two,  i t  was now 

Loca l  Government  and Trad i t iona l  A f fa i rs  and  then a 

Depar tment  o f  Human Set t lement  was c rea ted separa te ly.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you were  in  the  Human 10 

Set t lements  s ide  o f  the  organogram,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    I  was t ransfer red  f rom Loca l  

Government  to  Human Set t lement  as a  Ch ie f  D i rec tor.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The repor t ing  s t ruc tures  appear  a t  

page 190 a t  paragraph 21.   Do you see tha t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And w i thout  in tend ing  any adverse  

comment ,  you are  fa i r l y  low down in  tha t  h ie ra rchy.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  i t  wou ld  be  the  HOD above 

me,  there  w i l l  be  DDGs and then there  w i l l  be  the  CFO 20 

above me and then w i l l  come as Ch ie f  D i rec tors  jus t  be low 

those execut ives .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  the  on ly  reason I  make the  

po in t  i s  tha t  those were  d isc ip l ined,  who were  u l t imate ly  

d isc ip l ined and d ismissed were  no t  a t  the  top  o f  the 
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rank ings.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Can I  ask  –  we have jus t  had a  

message f rom the  t ransc r ibe r,  un l i ke  o ther  w i tnesses,  you 

speak ve ry  loud ly  and c lea r ly,  so  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  move 

away f rom the  microphone p lease?   We have to  say exact ly  

the  oppos i te  to  a l l  the  o ther  w i tnesses.   What  were  your  

respons ib i l i t i es  as  Ch ie f  D i rec to r?   You dea l  w i th  tha t  in  

parag raph 24.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    In  the  Human Set t lement?  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    In  the  Human Set t lement  I  had two –  

oh  no,  two d i rec tora te ,  I  had a  techn ica l  d i rec tora te  wh ich  

was main ly  your  bu i ld ing  inspectors  tha t  w i l l  inspect  the  

const ruc t ion  o f  the  houses and they were  const ruc ted  and  

then on the  o ther  d i rec tora te  w i l l  be  d i rec to ra te  

respons ib le  fo r  p lann ing  and research .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  the  inspectors  who went  ou t  

pursuant  to  the  bu i ld ing  cont rac ts  and inspected and 

mi les tones,  d id  they repor t  to  you?  20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    They repor ted  to  me v ia  the  d i rec tor  

tha t  was respons ib le  fo r  them which  was Mr  Kabe lo  Ko lo i .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Ko lo i ,  r igh t .   On page 192 you dea l  

w i th  the  s tandard  pro toco ls  fo r  bu i ld ing  RDP houses w i th  

the  D iv is ion  o f  Revenue Act  fund ing ,  DORA fund ing .   That  
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ev idence is  a  mat te r  o f  record  we need not  de ta i l  i t  any  

fu r the r.   But  wha t  i s  your  reco l lec t ion?  You dea l  w i th  i t  in  

parag raph 30 o f  the  amount  a l loca ted  fo r  the  2010/2011 

f inanc ia l  year.   I  am re fer r ing  to  paragraph 30 on page 193.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   We were  a l loca ted  1 .4 

b i l l i on  by  the  Nat iona l  f i scus,  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  v ia  

Human Set t lemen t  Depar tment .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  most  o f  tha t  was a  new 

a l loca t ion ,  we unders tand,  bu t  par t  o f  tha t  was a  ro l lover  

f rom the  prev ious  f inanc ia l  yea r.  10 

MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  they were  the  ro l love r  a  new 

a l loca t ion  w i l l  be  combined to  fo rm  the  amounts .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   And the  purpose o f  tha t ,  as 

we know,  was fo r  the  const ruc t ion  o f  low cost  hous ing  in  

the  prov ince.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  i s  the  prov inc ia l  bus iness  

p lan?  You dea l  w i th  tha t  a t  paragraph 31 and fo l low ing.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    The prov inc ia l  bus iness p lan  is  a  p lan  

tha t  each prov ince compi les  a  year  be fore  imp lementa t ion  20 

wh ich  ta lks  to  the  pro jec ted  a l loca ted  amount  in  te rms o f  

med ium term expend i tu re  f ramework  wh ich  then says th i s  

w i l l  be  our  p ro jec ts ,  los t  cos t  hous ing  in  te rms o f  severa l  

p rogrammes tha t  a re  inc luded in  the  what  you ca l l  the 

hous ing  pro jec t .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And in  o rder  to  compi le  tha t  

bus iness p lan  you communica te  w i th  the  mun ic ipa l i t ies  

where  these houses w i l l  be  bu i l t  on  the  one hand and the  

Nat iona l  Depar tment  on  the  o the r.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   The p lann ing  cyc le  o f  

government  i s  such tha t  a  mun ic ipa l i t y  must  comp i le  and 

IDP.   Wi th in  tha t  par t i cu la r  in teg ra ted  deve lopment  p lan  

you have to  have  a  hous ing  sector  p lan  wh ich  is  a  spec i f i c  

p lan  tha t  ta lks  to  hous ing  mat te rs .  That  hous ing  secto r  

p lan  w i l l  ident i f y  tha t  a rea  o f  needs and i t  w i l l  a lso  ta lk  to  10 

the  spec ia l  ava i l ab i l i t y  o f  land and the  number  o f  peop le 

tha t  a re  l ook ing  fo r  hous ing  in  the  area.   Then i t  w i l l  be  

in tegra ted  in to  the  d is t r i c t  deve lopment  p lan .    The d is t r i c t  

deve lopment  p lan  w i l l  a lso  be  in tegra ted  w i th  o the r  

depar tments  a t  a  p rov inc ia l  leve l  where  you p roduce what  

we ca l l  p rov inc ia l  g rowth  and deve lopment  s t ra tegy wh ich  

w i l l  a lso  ta lk  to  the  spec ia l  deve lopment  f ramework  o f  the  

prov ince.    

In  essence,  the  documents ,  the  bu i ld ing  documents  

w i l l  then te l l  you  where  we shou ld  be  focus ing  in  te rms o f  20 

de l i very  o f  hous ing  together  w i th  o ther  ameni t ies .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  a t  a  genera l  leve l  there  i s  a  

de ta i led  sys tem and p lan  tha t  cont ro l s  the  a l loca t ion  o f  

money fo r  hous ing  pro jec ts  in  a  pa r t i cu la r  p rov ince.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Le t  us  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  anothe r  leve l .   

One o f  the  issues o f  concern  in  th is  mat te r  i s  tha t  mon ies  

were  no t  p roper ly  spent  and there  was waste fu l  and 

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  in  the  const ruc t ion  o f  houses.   Now 

there  a re  var ious pro tec t ions bu i l t  in to  the  sys tem which  

were  ignored in  th is  case wh ich  you w i l l  ta lk  about  in  your  

ev idence but  be fore  payment  can be made to  a  cont rac tor,  

m i les tones must  be  ach ieved.   We have heard  tha t  

ev idence.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  a re  those mi les tones?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    There  is  th ree  mi les tones.   There  is  

bas ica l l y  the  foundat ion ,  a  m i les tone,  the  wa l l  p la te  and 

then the  roo f ing ,  comple t ion  m i les tone.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now before  the  cont rac tor  can 

c la im a t  the  comple t ion  o f  any m i les tone,  you have  to ld  us  

tha t  there  are  inspect ions.   We have heard  tha t  there  are 

inspect ions tha t  must  take  p lace  and the  work  must  be  

ver i f ied .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And not  on ly  i s  th is  p rov ided fo r  in  

the  cont rac t  i t se l f  bu t  in  the  Human Set t lements  Scheme 

documenta t ion ,  am I  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  mean …[ in tervenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Hous ing  subs idy  scheme.  
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MR MAXATSH WA:    Hous ing  subs idy  scheme,  wh ich  is  the  

sys tem tha t  ass is t  in  bu i ld ing  management  in  the  

Depar tment  o f  Human Set t lement  bo th  prov inc ia l  and 

nat iona l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   Would  you jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  

in  parag raph 42 and 43 on page 195,  you ta lk  about  those 

inspect ions wh ich  are  requ i red  by  the  cont rac t  and the  

hous ing  subs idy  scheme,  those events  tha t  must  take  p lace  

before  payment  can be made,  parag raph 42 and 43.   

Par t i cu la r ly  43 ,  the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  the  inspect ion  must  be  10 

car r ied  ou t .  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Yes,  Cha i r.   F i rs t l y,  you w i l l  rece i ve  a  

request  f rom the  cont rac tor  tha t  they have comple ted  the  

excavat ions.   There  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  ac t i v i t ies  on  a  

foundat ion  i t se l f .   There  w i l l  be  excavat ions,  compact ions  

and f i l l i ng  o f  the  foundat ion  tha t  shou ld  be  i nspected 

before  a  s lab  is  cas ted ,  the  concre te  i s  cas ted .    

 A f te r  tha t ,  a f te r  the  cast ing  o f  the  foundat ion  i t  w i l l  

be  le f t  to  cure  and then seven days to  ten  they w i l l  request  

tha t  the  inspector  shou ld  come and approve tha t  par t i cu la r  20 

foundat ion  tha t  has been comple ted  and is  s tand ing  as  per  

the  spec i f i ca t ions .   But  then the  cont rac tor ’s  eng ineer  w i l l  

a lso  be  the re  to  make sure  tha t  i f  there  a re  any concerns 

tha t  our  i nspecto r,  the  depar tmen t ,  ra ises  i s  ab le  to  can 

exp la in .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    F ine ,  i f  you  wou ld  go  to  paragraph 

44.   I f  the  const ruc t ion  work  i s  then approved what  

happens then?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    In  the  cons t ruc t ion ,  the  m i les tone is  

approved,  a l l  the  concerned par t ies  mean ing  our  inspecto r,  

the  eng ineer,  the  cont rac tor ’s  eng ineer,  NHRBC’s  peop le ,  

inspectors ,  and  the  mun ic ipa l  bu i ld ing  inspector,  they  

cer t i f y  the  document  and g ive  i t  back to  the  cont rac tor  to  

go  and submi t  fo r  payment  a t  the  depar tment .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And f ina l l y,  what  happens then?  10 

MR MAXATSHWA:    F ina l l y,  when i t  i s  submi t ted  i t  i s  

captured on the  sys tem,  the  HS sys tem,  and there  w i l l  be  

another  sys tem o f  payment  wh ich  is  ca l led  BAS where  

in fo rmat ion  w i l l  a lso  be  captu red on the  CFO’s  s ide  so  tha t  

payment  can be genera ted  and then the  cont rac to r  can be 

pa id .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You re fer red  to  the  sys tem,  i s  tha t  

B -A-S  sys tem? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja ,  B-A-S  sys tem,  BAS.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   The po in t  o f  th is  ev idence  20 

is  jus t  to  i l l us t ra te  tha t  there  i s  an  e labora te  sys tem o f  

checks and ba lances fo r  the  p roper  expend i tu re  o f  payment  

fo r  low cost  hous ing  on the  one hand and fo r  the  proper  

const ruc t ion  under  superv i s ion  o f  low cost  hous ing  on the  

o ther  hand,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i f  tha t  sys tem is  fo l lowed,  the  

low cost  hous ing  p lans shou ld  work .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now c lear ly,  we know tha t  tha t  

sys tem s imply  d id  no t  app ly  in  re la t ion  to  what  happened in  

2010/2011,  am I  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    Ja ,  to  some exten t  i t  d id  no t  app ly,  

Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  we can dea l  w i th  tha t  in  your  10 

ev idence as  we go th rough i t .   We have dea l t  w i th  the  

events  o f  2010/2011 wh ich  requ i red  the  i ssue o f  a  new 

tender  and the  commencement  o f  the  new p rocurement  

p rocess fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  cont rac tors .   We need not  

go  in to  any de ta i l  a l though you do dea l  w i th  i t  in  de ta i l  in  

your  s ta tement .    

The resu l t  o f  th is  was a  new tender  p rocess fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  cont rac tors  was in i t ia ted  and tha t  

co l lapsed,  bas i ca l l y,  the  tender  pe r iod  was exceeded and i t  

was dec ided to  approve a  da tabase o f  cont rac tors .   You 20 

reca l l  a l l  tha t .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  tha t  wou ld  no t  have happened 

a t  you r  leve l  o f  opera t ion .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  tha t  w i l l  be  a  supp ly  cha in  mat te r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  we  know tha t  tha t  da tabase  

inc luded cont rac tors  who had been d isqua l i f ied  in  the  

abandoned procurement  p rocess o r,  amongst  o ther  th ings,  

tha t  they were  no t  competent  to  do  the  work .   Do you reca l l  

tha t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  reca l l  tha t  because I  have a  s igh t  o f  

the  b id  eva lua t ion  repor t .   The b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee  

repor t  and a lso  the  b id  ad jud i ca t ion  repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A t  the  leve l  a t  wh ich  you were  

dea l ing  w i th  the  const ruc t ion  o f  houses and superv is ing  10 

inspectors ,  d id  the  appo in tment  o f  under -qua l i f ied  

cont rac tors  cause  a  prob lem in  the  const ruc t ion  o f  houses?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r,  the re  w i l l  be  new ent ran ts  in to  

the  sys tem.   In  a  normal  const ruc t ion  bus iness you look fo r  

those const ruc t ion  compan ies  tha t  have a  musc le  to  can  

hand le  the  cons t ruc t ion .   When  you look a t  the i r  b id  

document ,  they w i l l  te l l  you  the  funct iona l i t y  and the i r  

f inanc ia l  musc le  tha t  can hand le  the  pro jec t .   But  once  

those requ i rements  are  no t  in  ex is tence in  the  b id  

documents ,  you  w i l l  f ind  i t  hard  fo r  those tha t  ge ts  20 

appo in ted  to  move a t  speed.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  qua l i t y  o f  the  bu i ld ing  tha t  

resu l ts?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    That  w i l l  a lso  a f fec t  the  qua l i t y  o f  

bu i ld ing  because  they w i l l  no t  be  hav ing  tha t  exper ience,  
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the  [ ind is t inc t ]  28 .40  to  p roduce qua l i t y.   Hence you w i l l  

a l loca te  them 50  or  100 un i ts  jus t  to  tes t  the  waters  and  

then put  an  emphas is  on  your  inspectors  to  say look a f te r  

these guys so  tha t  they can produce qua l i t y  in  te rms o f  the 

specs and i f  there  i s  any shoddy work  they w i l l  be  

pun ished fo r  tha t  because a t  the  end o f  the  day you w i l l  

have to  demol ish  the  house and then s ta r t  a f resh.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Le t  us  move on then.   Much o f  the  

content  o f  you r  a f f idav i t  up  to  page 201 has a l ready been 

dea l t  w i th  in  ev idence and we  need not  dea l  w i th  i t  10 

because i t  i s  la rge ly  cons is ten t  w i th  what  you say bu t  i f  we 

can go to  page 201 o f  FS12 and dea l  w i th  the  ERP or  the  

expend i tu re  recovery  p lan .   We know tha t  the  Nat iona l  

Depar tment  o f  Human Set t lements  ra i sed concerns about  

the  leve l  o f  spend ing  in  the  Free S ta te  depar tment ,  

cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And Min is te r  Sexwale  i ssued a  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  to  the  MEC,  Mr  Zwane,  express ing  h i s  

concerns.  20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  requ i rement  tha t  a rose out  

o f  tha t  communica t ion  was to  p roduce an expend i tu re  

recovery  p lan .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you say in  parag raph 64 tha t  

tha t  p lan  was indeed prepared as  par t  o f  the  so-ca l led  War  

Room.   What  was  the  War  Room?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    The te rm War  Room Cha i r  you w i l l  

hea r  i t  in  most  o f  the  government  sectors .   When there  is  

t roub le  a  War  Room is  c rea ted i t  i s  where  peop le  w i l l  s i t ,  

mon i to r  and imp lementa t ion  o f  the  dec is ions tha t  have  

been taken to  ensure  tha t  there  i s  constant  mon i to r ing  and 

there  i s  constant  de l i very  on  the  ground and i f  there  i s  any  

prob lems you w i l l  ra ise  a  hand and say th is  i s  concern ing  10 

me and can i t  be  a t tended by  the  re levant  au thor i t ies .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The advance payment  p lan  we  

have heard  tha t  i t  o r ig ina ted  in  d iscuss ions in  the  War  

Room tha t  the  ins tance o f  the  fo rmer  MEC Mr  Zwane,  is  

tha t  you r  reco l lec t ion?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No Cha i r,  my  reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  the  

advance payments  scheme – the  War  Room was a  product  

o f  the  advance  payment  scheme because wh i ls t  tha t  

scheme was des igned and approved i t  needed hands o f  

peop le  tha t  w i l l  manage what  i s  conta ined in  the  advance 20 

payment  scheme.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  o ther  w i tnesses have  

sa id  tha t  the  p lan  was ac tua l l y  dev i sed as  pa r t  o f  the  War  

Room but  tha t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  semant ics .   There  was a  

meet ing  a t  wh ich  the  dev is ing  o f  the  p lan  was d iscussed.   
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The crea t ion  o f  the  p lan  was d iscussed and you say the  

War  Room meet ings governed the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the 

p lan  and moni to red  the  imp lementa t ion  o f  the  p lan .   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l igh t ,  the  ERP the  expend i tu re  

recovery  p lan  where  was tha t  p repared?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    The ERP i t  was prepared by  the  sen ior  

managers  inc lud ing  MEC Zwane in  a  separa te  meet ing .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   10 

MR MAXATSHWA :    You ment ioned ac tua l l y  tha t  a  no t ice  

f rom Min i s te r  Sexwale  was sen t  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  MEC 

Zwane.   He then  ca l led  a  meet ing  o f  a l l  head o f  o f f i c ia ls  

bo th  in  loca l  government  and t rad i t iona l  a f fa i rs  because 

you had peop le  who were  exper ienced in  te rms  o f  the  

government  p lann ing  and those  tha t  were  con t ro l l ing  

espec ia l l y  the  d i rec to ry  tha t  cont ro ls  the  approva l  o f  

spec ia l  p lans tha t  es tab l i shment  p lans and a l i ke .   And  

inc luded in  tha t  meet ing  were  a l so  the  o f f i c ia ls  f rom deputy  

d i rec tor  leve l  in  the  human se t t lement  up  to  the  ch ie f  20 

d i rec tor  leve l .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you take  any par t  in  the  

prepara t ion  o f  tha t  p lan ,  d id  you cont r ibu te  to  the 

prepara t ion  o f  tha t  p lan?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  took  pa r t  because my 
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corne r  as  a  ch ie f  d i rec tora te  was go ing  to  be  hand l ing  the 

techn ica l  aspects  o f  the  const ruc t i on .   So you had to  say 

look f rom where  I  am s i t t ing  th is  is  what  I  w i l l  need i f  we 

ta lk  capac i ty  bu i l d ing .    

I f  we had to  run  fas ter,  I  w i l l  need more  runners ,  

more  

inspectors  on  the  ground in  te rms  o f  human bod ies ,  warm 

bod ies  and I  w i l l  a lso  need maybe so f tware  gadgets  tha t  

w i l l  ass is t  me when the  ou ts ide  to  communica te  and the  

budget  l inked to  tha t  because i f  inspectors  go  ou ts ide  10 

B loemfonte in ,  they w i l l  have e i ther  to  spend the  who le  

week o r  two weeks be ing  on the  f ie ld .         

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A t  a  more  sen io r  leve l  –  and I  am 

re fer r i ng  to  HOD’s  and I  am re fer r i ng  to  the  MEC,  who was  

invo lved in  the  prepara t ion  o f  the  ERP?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Mr  Mokoena was there ,  Mr  Tsoamets i  

was there ,  the  CFO was the re  and Ms Dh lamin i  and the  

MEC’s  o f f i ce  was there  a l so  inc luded was the  MEC.     

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  and were  they respons ib le  

fo r  the  f ina l  compi la t ion  o f  the  p lan ,  togethe r?   You say so  20 

in  paragraph 64.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now tha t  ERP is  someth ing  

separa te  f rom the  advance payment  p lan  as  I  unders tand  

your  v iew o f  th ings.   
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MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  there  w i l l  be  an  ERP and there  w i l l  

a lso  be  an advanced payment  scheme.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  who  –  were  you invo lved in  

the  deve lopment  o f  the  advanced payment  p lan?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    The advanced  payment  scheme as you  

sa id?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    EPS? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    No I  was not  invo lved.   10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We have dea l t  a t  some leng th  w i th  

the  document  wh ich  is  a  s l ide  presenta t ion  o f  the  ERP,  the  

expend i tu re  recovery  p lan  and the  cash f low pro jec t ions  

sect ion  o f  tha t  p lan .   You ta lk  about  tha t  in  paragraph  66.   

Do you see tha t?     

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now tha t  cash f low p ro jec t ion  and I  

th ink  you have shadowed i t  in  your  p rev ious answers  now 

contempla ted  the  normal  p rocess tak ing  p lace,  m i les tone to  

m i les tone and payment  on  m i les tones.   Do I  unders tand i t  20 

cor rec t l y?    

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The consensus so  fa r  has been 

tha t  –  we l l  le t  me ask you th is  f i rs t .   When was tha t  p lan  

compi led  and comple ted  the  p lan  par t  o f  i t?   When was the  
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document  f ina l l y  comple ted?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    The ERP or  the?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The ERP.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    The ERP was compi led  dur ing  October 

month .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  and we know f rom o ther  

w i tnesses and you can co r rec t  us  i f  th is  ev idence is  no t  

cor rec t  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage no houses had been comple ted ,  

a t  tha t  f inanc ia l  yea r.    

MR MAXATSHWA:    There  were  houses tha t  were  10 

comple ted  on the  ground,  ro l l ing  f rom the  prev ious 

f inanc ia l  year.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  bu t  we ta l k ing  about  th is  

par t i cu la r  a l loca t ion .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    On th is  par t i cu la r  a l loca t ion ,  no .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  okay now wou ld  you agree  

w i th  the  ev idence  tha t  has been g iven to  da te  tha t  the  cash  

f low pro jec t ions were  over l y  ambi t ious .   You were  no t  go ing  

to  spend over  a  b i l l i on  rand in  the  f ina l  months  o f  the  year.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja ,  Cha i r  I  w i l l  agree and qua l i f y  my 20 

s ta tement  by  say ing  i f  we were  to  s ta r t  in  November 

runn ing  there  w i l l  be  const ruc t ion  ho l iday in  December  

wh ich  w i l l  move up unt i l  January.   Midd le  January  i s  when 

everybody comes back to  do  const ruc t ion .   So i t  i s  

bas ica l l y  the  s tep  in  te rms o f  your  de l i very.     



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 63 of 130 
 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  you wou ld  no t  f in ish  by  the  

end o f  the  f inanc ia l  yea r.   

MR MAXATSHWA:    Ja ,  you w i l l  no t  f in ish  you w i l l  

obv ious ly  have –  what  you ca l l  i t  –  a  ro l love r  o f  the  funds  

to  the  next  f inanc ia l  yea r.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l  yes  and you say tha t  was  

obv ious bu t  what  the  cash f low p ro jec t ions sa id  was tha t  

every th ing  wou ld  be  comple te  to  the  tune o f  over  a  b i l l i on 

rand by  March.    

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  was ambi t ious .   10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  to  pu t  i t  gent ly.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  ever  go ing  to  happen? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not  go ing  to  happen.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  was not  go ing  to  happen as  I  have  

sa id  i f  you  beg in  in  November  to  s ta r t  chas ing  

const ruc t ion ,  you  w i l l  be  h i t  by  the  const ruc t ion  ho l iday 

anyway.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    The supp l ie rs  w i l l  c lose ,  p roducers  o f  20 

mater ia l  w i l l  be  c losed most ly  peop le  who want  to  go  and  

have fes t i ve  w i th  the i r  k ids  espec ia l l y  the  loya l  employees  

tha t  w i l l  have m igra ted  to  come in  and work  in  cer ta in  

p ro jec ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  d id  you say you were  par t  o f  the 
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p repara t ion  o f  tha t  p lan?     

MR MAXATSHWA :    O f  the  ERP,  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    You were  pa r t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  was par t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    You admi t  tha t  you were  a l l  aware  tha t  

you were  m isrep resent ing  the  pos i t ion  when you ind ica ted  

th rough the  p lan  tha t  by  end o f  the  f inanc ia l  year  you 

wou ld  have comple ted  the  a l loca t ion ,  the  houses  needed 

fo r  the  a l loca t ion .   

MR MAXATSHWA:    Cha i r  yes  we are  s i t t ing  there  and  10 

debat ing  a l l  o f  us  and i f  your  po in t  was not  car ry ing  any 

sense those who be l ieved tha t  th is  can be done w i l l  say  no  

th is  can be done .   But  you w i l l  s i t  there  in  a  meet ing  and  

say…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Speak ing  fo r  yourse l f  you knew tha t  i t  

cou ld  no t  be  done.    

MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  f rom my exper ience in  te rms o f  

const ruc t ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  tha t  was imposs ib le .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and was there  anyone in  the  room 

who was par t i c i pa t ing  in  tha t  p lan  who sa id  tha t  they 

genu ine ly  be l ieved i t  was ach ievab le?   Do you remember  

anyone in  the  room who pa r t i c ipa ted  in  p repar ing  the  p lan  

who genu ine ly  o r  who sa id  they genu ine ly  be l ieved  i t  was 



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 65 of 130 
 

ach ievab le?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r  because there  was so  many o f  

us…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  when a l l  i s  sa id  

and done,  when  you look a t  everybody you know tha t  

everybody knew tha t  th is  was not  ach ievab le .   They may  

have sa id  whatever  they sa id  bu t  the  t ru th  i s  they knew i t  

was not  ach ievab le .   A re  you ab le  to  say tha t  o r  a re  you 

on ly  ab le  to  say tha t  fo r  yourse l f?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  am ab le  to  say the  majo r i t y  o f  us  w i l l  10 

say w i th  the  lack  o f  capac i ty  as  a  new depar tment  th is  w i l l  

no t  be  happen ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  do  you remember  anyone tha t  may  

have pushed s t rong ly  tha t  as  fa r  as  he  or  she was  

concerned th is  was ach ievab le  and i f  so  who was tha t?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r  because  i t  was a  long t ime when 

th is  meet ings happened one cannot  c lear l y  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine .    20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    No okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  yes  Mr  

Pre tor ius .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    There  must  have been present  a t  

these meet ings o r  a t  th is  meet ing  techn ica l  exper ts  peop le  
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who unders tood the  requ i rements  o f  the  normal  bu i ld ing  

process.   The cost ing  o f  foundat ions,  the  inspect ions,  the 

wa l ls ,  the  roo f ing  a l l  the  serv ices  tha t  had to  be  prov ided.   

There  must  have  been techn ica l  exper ts  w i th  a  knowledge 

o f  whether  th is  was an ach ievab le  p lan  o r  no t .   

MR MAXATSH WA:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  wou ld  say there  must  have 

been peop le  w i th  knowledge bu t  s ince  we are  a  new 

depar tment  s t i l l  s t rugg l ing  to  ge t  exper t s .   I f  I  pu t  i t  r ight  

the  techn ica l  exper t s  tha t  we needed were  l i ke  quant i t y  

surveyors ,  p ro fess iona l  eng ineers  in  te rms o f  const ruc t ion ,  10 

c iv i l  eng ineers  tha t  w i l l  ta lk  to  your  bu l k  supp ly  and s tu f f  

l i ke  tha t .    

Those were  no t  in  ex i s tence in  ou r  depar tment  un t i l  

 such t ime we rece ived I  th ink  i t  was a  year  la te r  when we 

rece ived ass is tance f rom the  Cuban Government  in  te rms 

o f  the  Cuban  exchange program and the  Cuban  

pro fess iona ls .   Then we had arch i tec ts ,  we had a lso  

eng ineers  peop le  tha t  can rea l l y  th ink  tho rough ly  on  

techn ica l  mat te rs .            

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You know th is  i s  a  techn ica l  20 

exerc ise  Mr  Maxatshwa one wou ld  have thought  w i th  a  

b i l l i on  rand a t  s take tha t  a t  the  very  least  techn ica l  

exper t i se  wou ld  have been ca l led  upon in  the  prepara t ion  

o f  th is  rev iew p lan .   I t  seems to  me tha t  i t  was prepared  

w i thout  any regard  to  the  techn ica l  aspects  o f  the  mat te r  
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and th i s  i s  a  techn ica l  mat te r.       

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  agree w i th  you w i th  tha t  s ta tement .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  you  say in  paragraph 67 Mr  

Maxatshwa tha t  the  ERP was presented a t  the  October  

techn ica l  m in is te r ia l  meet ing  o f  the  execut ive  counc i l  tha t  

i s  the  MINMEC,  the  techn ica l  MINMEC.   Which  sen ior  

o f f i c ia ls  wou ld  have a t tended tha t  meet ing?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    The October  meet ing  w i l l  have been 

a t tended by  myse l f  and Mr  Mokoena,  the  CFO.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  and  any o ther  o f f i c ia ls  o f  a  10 

sen ior  na ture  f rom the  nat iona l  depar tment?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  f rom the  nat iona l  depar tment  you 

w i l l  have the  who le  sen ior  management  and the  execut ive  

management  there  f rom the  D i rec tor  Genera l ,  Mr  Thabane 

Zu lu  who is  the  ch ie f  opera t ion  o f f i cer,  Mr  Nage l  Cha in  

0 :16 :20:08,  the  CFO of f i ce  and then you w i l l  have the i r  

suppor t ing  s ta f f .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  the  members  o f  the  na t iona l  

depar tments  say anyth ing  to  the  members  o f  the  prov inc ia l  

depar tment  about  the  v iab i l i t y  and lega l i t y  o f  the  ERP? 20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    A t  the  meet ing  in  October?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSH WA:    In  October  we  say tha t  because to  go  

and rev i se  the  p lan  and present  what  wou ld  have  been a  

rev i sed ERP in  the  November  techn ica l  MINMEC.   
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  and d id  the  November  

meet ing  then take  p lace?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    Yes,  the  November  meet ing  d id  take  

p lace.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You ta lk  about  tha t  on  page 202.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And was i t  a t  tha t  meet ing  tha t  the  

advanced payment  i ssue was ra ised?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  I  d id  h igh l igh t  a t  tha t  meet ing  tha t  

th is  i s  the  th ink ing  about  spend ing  the  money in  the  Free  10 

S ta te .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And what  was the  response  o f  the  

meet ing  to  what  you sa id?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    The response  f rom those tha t  had the  

exper ience espec ia l l y  guys f rom Gauteng were  say ing  tha t  

w i l l  no t  work ,  we have the  exper ience o f  i t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  tha t  s tage when you sa id  to  them th i s  

was the  th ink ing  in  the  Free S ta te  about  advance payments  

where  d id  you ge t  tha t  idea f rom had tha t  been d i scussed  20 

in  the  Free S ta te  a l ready?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  i t  was d i scussed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  had a l ready been d iscussed.    

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  had a l ready been d iscussed.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  had not  been p laced put  in  wr i t ing  
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o r  in  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t  you dea l  w i th  tha t  in  the 

next  pa rag raph perhaps the  most  s t ra igh t  fo rward  quest ion  

was as  fa r  as  you are  concerned whose idea was the  

advanced payment  p lan?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  was the  idea  o f  the  MEC.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And as  you say in  pa ragraph 71 by  

the  18 t h  o f  November  when th is  techn ica l  MINMEC meet ing  10 

took p lace Mr  Tsoamets i  recommendat ions or  h is  document  

wh ich  we have d iscussed in  ev idence thus fa r  had not  ye t  

been s igned o f f  tha t  on ly  happened on the  25 t h  o f  

November  2010.   Cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A t  the  two meet ings o r  in  fac t  there  

were  th ree  meet ings.   There  was one on the  18 t h  o f  

November,  there  was one in  October  and there  was  a  th i rd  

meet ing  on  the  19 t h  o f  November.   What  was tha t  meet ing?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    I t  was the  po l i t i ca l  MINMEC as you  20 

know i t ,  the  Min i s te rs  and the  MEC’s .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And a t  tha t  meet ing  wh ich  

Min is te rs  and wh ich  MEC’s  wou ld  have a t tended? 

MR MAXATSHWA:    Min i s te r  Tokyo Sexwale  was our  

Min is te r  then and  then a l l  the  MEC’s  respons ib le  fo r  human 
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se t t lement  o r  loca l  government ,  t rad i t iona l  a f fa i rs  and  

human se t t lemen t .   Whatever  combinat ion  tha t  you w i l l  

have in  any p rov ince.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you  a t tend tha t  mee t ing  the 

MINMEC meet ing ,  the  Min i s te r  –  the  po l i t i ca l  mee t ing  as  

you ca l l  i t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r  I  a t tended i t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  was sa id  there  bo th  about  the  

ERP and about  the  advanced payment  p lan?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  po l i t i ca l  MINMEC conf i rmed what  10 

was submi t ted  as  recommendat ion  f rom the  techn ica l  

MINMEC on the  ERP,  our  ERP.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  was tha t?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    I t  was summar i sed in  the  m inutes  

where  the  Cha i rperson sa id  I  w i l l  recommend tha t  no t  to  be  

taken o f  the  presenta t ion  o f  the  Free S ta te  and tha t  the  

ERP is  no t  conv inc ing  enough and the  money w i l l  be  taken 

f rom the  Free S ta te .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay so  i t  was re jec ted  the  ERP 

was re jec ted?  20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    The ERP was re jec ted .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  advance payment  p lan?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  was not  on l y  ERP i t se l f .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No,  no  I  know i t  was not  on ly  the  

ERP but  was the  advance payment  p lan  d iscussed a t  the  
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meet ing  o f  19  November?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja ,  the  comments  were  passed  a f te r  I  

have ind i ca ted  the  comments  were  passed to  say no  tha t  

th ing  is  un lawfu l ,  i t  w i l l  no t  work .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  a t  the  po l i t i ca l  meet ing  where  

the  Nat iona l  Min is te r  and the  MEC’s  were  present  he ld  on  

the  19 t h  o f  November  2010 two th ings happened.   The ERP 

p lan  was re jec ted  and second ly  the  advance payment  p lan  

was s ta ted  to  be  i l l ega l  and i t  cou ld  no t  cont inue.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And d id  your  MEC par t i c ipa te  in  tha t  

d iscuss ion?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r  he  had tendered the  apo logy  

together  w i th  the  HOD.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  both  o f  them were  no t  there?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja  they were  in  the  NCOP,  the  NCOP 

was v i s i t ing  Free S ta te  on  tha t  par t i cu la r  da tes .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  may have  missed someth ing  tha t  I  

th ink  wou ld  have come ear l ie r.   I  th ink  I  saw in  your  

a f f idav i t  tha t  you sa id  tha t  when the  idea o f  advanced 20 

payment  was put  on  the  tab le  by  MEC Zwane in  a  meet ing  

in  the  Free S ta te  in  the  hous ing  depar tment  tha t  the  

react ion  o f  most  o f  the  peop le  who a t tended tha t  meet ing  

was tha t  tha t  wou ld  be  i l l ega l ,  advance payment  wou ld  be  

i l l ega l .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?    
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MR MAXATSHWA :    No Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh I  m isunders tood.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  was ta lk ing  to  the  ERP.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh the  ERP.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  the  advance  payment .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  no t  the  advance payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay a l r igh t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  we have ev idence on record  o f  

var ious meet ings  tha t  took p lace  in  the  Free S ta te  and  10 

meet ings tha t  took p lace invo l v ing  the  Nat iona l  Min is te r  

and members  f rom the  nat iona l  depar tment ,  there  were  a  

range o f  those meet ing .    

But  le t  me put  i t  a t  a  summary leve l  the  de ta i l s  a re  

in  the  a f f idav i t s  and in  the  rev iew app l i ca t ion  wh ich  was 

tes t i f ied  to  by  Mr  Mokhes i .   In  the  prov ince was i t  made  

c lea r  to  the  depar tment  o f f i c ia ls  in  the  depar tment  and the  

MEC tha t  the  advanced payment  p lan  was un lawfu l .   

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r  accord ing  to  what  I  have read  

f rom the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mokhes i  tha t  was to ld  to  the  MEC.   20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    In  the  meet ing  be tween I  th ink  i t  was a  

pr iva te  meet ing  be tween the  Min is te r  and the  MEC together  

w i th  the  HOD.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now we a lso  know f rom your  
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ev idence now tha t  the  ERP p lan  or  ERP i t se l f  was a l so  

re jec ted .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  was re jec ted .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you re fer  to  a  meet ing  o f  the 

19 t h  o f  November  wh ich  was not  a t tended by  Mr  Zwane no r  

by  the  HOD at  the  t ime Mr  Mokoena?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wou ld  they have rece ived repor ts  

o f  what  happened  a t  the  meet ing  tha t  wou ld  seem p robab le  

as  a  mat te r  o f  common sense.   But  what  do  you say about  10 

tha t?    

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r  as  a  de legated pe rson a t  a  

meet ing  you w i l l  immedia te ly  when issues are  ra i sed and 

wh ich  are  burn ing  your  p rov ince  i f  I  may put  i t  in  tha t  

par t i cu la r  manner  take  a  phone and ca l l  the  de legat ing  

au thor i t y  wh ich  is  the  HOD.   To  say HOD th is  i s  what  had  

been sa id  in  th is  par t i cu la r  meet ing ,  the  ERP is  no t  

accepted,  the  idea o f  the  advance  payment  scheme is  no t  

accepted.    

So p lease in fo rm the  h igher  au thor i t y  wh ich  is  the  20 

MEC because by  then one was th ink ing  tha t  bo th  o f  them 

are  together  a t  the  NCOP which  was he ld  in  QwaQwa.   So 

they w i l l  b r ie f  one anothe r  in  te rms o f  what  i s  to  happen.         

Fo l lowing tha t  wou ld  be  the  m inu tes  bo th  se ts  o f  m inutes  

the  techn ica l  MINMEC and a lso  the  MINMEC minu tes  w i l l  
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be  t ransc r ibed same day and then be sent  to  a l l  the  

rec ip ien ts ,  the  peop le  tha t  shou ld  have been in  tha t  

par t i cu la r  meet ing  as  per  the  d i s t r ibu t ion  l i s t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have jus t  p i cked up what  I  had in  m ind  

when I  asked you the  las t  quest i on  tha t  I  asked you.   I t  

appears  in  paragraph 83 o f  you r  a f f idav i t  tha t  maybe i s  

someth ing  tha t  Mr  Pre tor ius  has s t i l l  to  come to  I  am not  

sure .   But  I  see there  you dea l  w i t h  a  cer ta in  meet ing  bu t  I  

see tha t  you do  not  ind ica te  whether  you a t tended the  

meet ing  yourse l f  tha t  was ca l led  by  Mr  Zwane seems to  10 

have been on the  29 t h  o f  October  2010 where  he  put  h i s  

p lan  on  the  tab le ,  h is  so lu t ion  in  quotes .   And you  say in  

parag raph 83 f i s t  l i ne :   

“The op in ion  o f  the  meet ing  was tha t  such a  

payment  sys tem wou ld  be  i l l ega l  because the  HSS  

po l i cy  f ramework  d id  no t  p rov ide  fo r  advance 

payments . ”    

I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  had in  m ind can you see tha t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r  I  can see tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you d id  no t  a t tend tha t  meet ing  20 

yourse l f .   You s tar t  ta lk ing  about  tha t  meet ing  in  the  

prev ious page f rom paragraph 79 .   You ment ioned  peop le  

were  there  bu t  you do not  seem to  ment ion  yourse l f .   

MR MAXATSHWA:    Ja ,  be fo re  the  meet ing  o f  the  29 t h  

Cha i r  we were  ca l led  in to  a  meet ing  by  MEC Zwane wh ich  
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meet ing  was a l luded to  by  Mr  Mokoena where  the  MEC 

br ie fed  us  about  the  advance payment  scheme.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  but  th is  one  o f  the  29 t h  you d id  no t  

a t tend or  do  you not  remember?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    The techn ica l  meet ing  o f  the  29 t h  I  d id  

a t tend w i th  Mr  Mokoena.   

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  a t tend?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay but  can  you see tha t  you  do say  

in  paragraph 83:   

“That  the  op in ion  o f  the  meet ing  was tha t  the  pre-

payment  sys tem was i l l ega l . ”    

Remember  I  asked you the  quest ion  whethe r  the  ma jor i t y  o f  

the  peop le  who a t tended the  meet ing  where  Mr  Zwane put  

on  the  tab le ,  pu t  h is  p roposa l  on  the  tab le ,  h is  so lu t ion  

whethe r  the  major i t y  o f  the  peop le  ind i ca ted  tha t  h is  

so lu t ion  wou ld  be  i l l ega l  in  te rms o f  p re-payments  and you 

sa id  no  you had sa id  tha t  in  regard  to  the  ERP.   20 

MR MAXATSHWA:    Ja ,  in  the  meet ing  be fore  October  

where  the  MEC br ie fed  us  about  the  advance payments  

sys tem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  I  w i l l  come to  tha t  jus t  now I  

jus t  want  to  unders tand what  the  pos i t ion  is  w i th  regard  to  

what  was sa id  a t  th is  meet ing  o f  the  29 t h  o f  October.   You 

conf i rm what  you say in  parag raph 83 namely :   

“That  the  op in ion  o f  the  meet ing  was tha t  such a  

payment  sys tem wou ld  be  i l l ega l . ”      

MR MAXATSHWA :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was the  v iew o f  the  meet ing .    

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay bu t  you unders tand why I  am 10 

coming back to  i t .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Okay,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you unders tand?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because I  thought  you d id  no t  seem to  

th ink  tha t  tha t  what  was sa id  bu t  you are  [ ind is t inc t ]  i f  that  

is t rue.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was the view of  the meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   On the 29t h.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in the… 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Not  – not… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In the meet ing before that  that  you have 
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just  ta lked about.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   You [ ta lk ing over one another] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was the posi t ion the same? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Before the meet ing of  the 29t h  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   The technical  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   There was a meet ing of  the MEC too.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes where … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  meet ing was at tended by Mr 

Zwane, yoursel f ,  Mr Mokoena and who e lse? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   And Ms Dlamini .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Dlamini .  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Mina Meint j ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Kabelo Kaloi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   There might  be one or two that  you 

forget .  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja Muso Tsoametsi  was in that  –  also in  20 

that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  – okay that  is f ine you do not  have 

to speci fy al l  of  them.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  the – is that  the f i rst  meet ing where Mr 
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Zwane advanced his “solut ion” in quotes for the problem? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And what was the react ion of  those 

who were present  to that  proposal  of  advanced payments? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The react ion was that  wi l l  be legal  

because you know the mi lestones.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Does not  cater for such.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   There is a meet ing that  Mr Mokoena spoke 

about in h is evidence yesterday and I  th ink he said i t  is the 

meet ing where Mr Zwane put  th is proposal  on the table for  

the f i rst  t ime.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   I t  is the same meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And he said he was the only one who 

spoke against  th is  “solut ion” and said i t  would be i l legal .   He 

said that  everyone else was quiet  and he even went  further  

and sa id i t  was as i f  the other people in the meet ing knew 

about th is maybe there had been some discussion.   The 20 

meet ing seemed to be just  between himsel f  and Mr  Zwane.  

Did you – would that  ref lect  what the posi t ion was?  Were a 

lot  of  people in the meet ing quiet  dur ing that  meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   No Chai r.   When you at tend a meet ing 

wi th the MEC you are expected to contr ibute.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:    There because whatever decision that  

wi l l  be taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Wi l l  – you wi l l  be requi red to implement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   So you wi l l  have to say your say and say 

this is how I  see i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  is the posi t ion as you recal l  wi th 

regard to that  meet ing which was pr ior to the technical  

meet ing – is the posi t ion that  a lot  of  people may have kept  

quiet  but  they were associat ing themselves wi th  the views 

expressed by Mr Mokoena or is your  recol lect ion that  they 

were actual ly vocal ;  they did express the same views as wel l  

namely these advance payments would be i l legal? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  the people who are at tending that  

meet ing were vocal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja [00:03:03]  know how the system 

should work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you able to say those who were saying 
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th is system would be i l legal  would have been the major i ty of  

those who at tended but  some agreed with the – wi th the 

MEC or would you say everybody was – spoke with one voice 

that  th is system of  payment would be i l legal? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The major i ty of  us in that  meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   We are not  – we are not  in agreement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes wi th the MEC.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot  say everybody but  the 10 

major i ty? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja the major i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Thank you Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Chair  we were coming to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And maybe – I  am sorry 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   To the advance payment system.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am terr ib ly sorry Mr Pretor ius.   At  that  

meet ing when the major i ty made i t  c lear to Mr Zwane that  

they thought his “so lut ion” in quotes was i l legal  were there 

reasons why the major i ty thought his “solut ion” was i l legal  20 

spel t  out? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  yes consider ing that  we are a new 

department.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   I f  you had to go buy the mater ia l  at  
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[00:04:27]  you wi l l  need as I  have said you wi l l  need more 

hands to be able to can keep an eye and control  such an 

exercise.   Unl ike l imi t ing i t  to one or  two contractors where 

you say look come help us we are in – we are at  a deep end.   

We are advancing you wi th so much so that  you can be able 

to del iver quicker.   I  should say Chai r  i t  was not  for the f i rst  

t ime that  the advance system was used.   I t  was used 

previously when Free State lost  R100 mi l l ion at  Nat ional  

f iscus.   There were a few contractors that  were out  

performing others that  you al locate the money but  you were 10 

able to produce the type of  uni ts that  were requi red.   Even 

under what we became known as the Phlasela [?] .   The 

Department  wi l l  in  terms of  thei r  th inking of  Phlasela [?]  they 

wi l l  send thei r  money to Publ ic  Works to be an implement ing 

agent on thei r  money.   I  remember there were a few projects 

– pr ior i ty projects that  needed to be – to be run before 2010 

where we were required as a Department to send our  money 

to Department of  Publ ic Works and then they start  bui ld ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  my quest ion is s imply whether  

you recal l  whether the grounds on which the major i ty was 20 

saying the advance payments would be i l legal  were spel t  out  

– were art iculated to Mr Zwane at  that  meet ing?  Do you 

remember whether those were set  out? Somebody did say 

this is why i t  would be i l legal  ABCD? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  as I  am saying we were a fai r ly 
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new department.   The capaci ty was not  there.   I t  was a huge 

concern.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Of  the meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Why were you saying the prepayment 

advance payment would be i l legal?  Talk – i f  you talk for 

yoursel f?  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  the al locat ion as per the DORA 10 

Divis ion of  Revenue Act  has got  condi t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   But  you do this wi th the money.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes this I  have targets that  must  be 

achieved.   Then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The mi lestones.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   The mi lestones.   Then the sector which 

is Human Sett lement wi l l  have a system in which the 

expendi ture wi l l  f low.  Ja which wi l l  – bigger mi lestone 20 

achievement.   The three mi lestones.   Those mi lestones wi l l  

get  monitored and [00:07:50]  every quarter to the Nat ional  

Fiscus.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did Mr Zwane say that  as far as he was 

concerned there was nothing i l legal  or unlawfu l  about 
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advance payments or did,  he not  say anything along those 

l ines? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  I  cannot recal l  exact ly what he 

said but  he came with the scheme.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   The idea and then we debated i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   And he said this  th ing wi l l  work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So he sa id i t  would work? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes this th ing wi l l  work you guys have to 

put  your mind in i t  to work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you do not  recal l  whether he 

responded to the concept of  i l legal i ty? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   No.   No Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot remember? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   I  cannot remember.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Less there be any confusion.   There 

was a meet ing on the 28t h or 29t h you give two dates of  the – 

of  October the – the October MINMAC meet ing – Technical  

MINMAC meet ing,  do you recal l  that? 
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MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Before that  meet ing r ight  there had 

been a meet ing about which you have told the Chai r  at  some 

length of  the proposal ,  the idea formulated by the MEC 

presented and the responses,  correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Was i t  at  that  meet ing that  Mr 

Tsoamets i  was told to go and draf t  a memorandum? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja that  was at  a meet ing where Mr 

Tsoamets i  was told – instructed to go and research about the 10 

… 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes and he came back wi th the 

product  on the 25 November a month later? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And i t  was at  that  –  that  document 

that  we have looked at  that  does not  contain any legal  

advice about i ts legal i ty but  merely about  how i t  should be 

implemented.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   Then there was the meet ing 20 

of  the 28 October you say later 29 October but  i t  is not  

mater ia l  that  the Technical  MINMAC meet ing.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you have sa id to the Chai r  who 

at tended.  What  was discussed at  that  meet ing?  As I  
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understand your statement i t  was the expendi ture recovery 

plan that  was d iscussed at  that  meet ing.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes because there was a concern of  the 

below par expendi ture.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

MR MAXATSHWA:   We were requi red to present  a recovery 

plan.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  10 

MR MAXATSHWA:   In order to meet.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes and i t  was not  accepted at  that  

meet ing.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   I t  was not  accepted we were to ld to go 

and revise i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Revise i t .   Then the next  meet ing 

Technical  MINMAC meet ing took place on the 18 November.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The ERP was presented again at  that  

meet ing? 20 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Is that  the ERP that  we have looked 

at  … 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The rev ised – the revised one that  is  

contained in the document.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R ight .   Was i t  a lso re jected at  that  

meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   I t  was also rejected in that  meet ing.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   At  that  meet ing you also raised the 

advance payments issue? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  what  was the response of  the 

meet ing to the advance payments issue? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   I t  is unlawful  you do not  even t ry i t ,  i t  is 

r isky.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   That  took place on the 18 

November.   Then on the 25 November we get  Mr Tsoametsi ’s  

memorandum which is s igned off  by Mr Mokoena.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   Then there is a MINMAC 

meet ing that  takes place on the 19 November.   Now the 

MINMAC meet ing is what you cal l  the pol i t ical  meet ing.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   At  that  meet ing was the ERP 

re jected? 20 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes i t  was rejected because the 

recommendat ion wi l l  have come from the Technical  MINMAC. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   Okay and the advance 

payment plan was that  ment ioned at  that  meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   No i t  was ment ioned in the – in the 
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recommendat ions of  ear l ier Technical  MINMAC. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight  okay.   And you have told the 

Chair  that  a l though Mr Zwane and Mr Mokoena d id not  

at tend the MINMAC meet ing of  19 November they would 

have received a report  back as to the decisions of  that  

meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   And i t  was at  that  meet ing as I  

understand i t  was decided to wi thhold certain monies is that  

correct? 10 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   In paragraph 77 of  your  

statement and of  course we wi l l  deal  in more detai l  wi th the 

advanced payment system at  paragraph 79 and fol lowing.   

Certain of  those quest ions have al ready been asked of  you 

but  you refer in  paragraph 77 to certain correspondence 

between the Nat ional  Department of  Human Sett lements and 

the Free State Department of  Human Sett lements.   I t  is  a  

let ter dated the 8 November 2010.  That  appears – that  let ter 

appears at  page 252.   I t  is a let ter addressed to Mr Thabane 20 

Zulu of  the Nat ional  Department  by Mr Mokoena of  the 

Provincial  Department.   Do you see that? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   252 yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   I t  seems to deal  wi th the 

expendi ture recovery program and seems to talk favourably 
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of  the possibi l i ty of  i ts implementat ion.   We have not  put  that  

to Mr Mokoena but  that  is something we can deal  wi th later.   

At  paragraph 77 what do you say about that  let ter?  What is  

the point  you are making about that  let ter? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The point  I  was making is  that  the 

Minister was concerned.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The Nat ional  Min ister? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The Nat ional  Minister.   He wrote a not ice 

to MEC Zwane to say your province is  not  spending 

accordingly.   Take care of  the si tuat ion and tel l  me how are 10 

you going to take care of  the si tuat ion.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   And the response was the 

ERP? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   The response was the ERP.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The intervent ion by the Nat ional  

Department and the request  to Mr Zwane to deal  wi th i t  and 

speci fy precise ly how expendi ture would take place was a 

let ter that  appears at  page 252 that  was the response f rom 

Mr Mokoena.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   But  as I  understand the point  you are 

making in paragraph 77 correct  me i f  I  am wrong was that  

the or ig inal  concern about under-spending the al locat ion 

came from the Nat ional  Department and the Minister  in the 

Nat ional  Department Minister Sexwale,  correct? 
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MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .   You wi l l  have a s ight  of  the 

f inancial  reports that  his  off ice at  nat ional  level  wi l l  have 

presented to him. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes and he said to Mr Zwane:  

“Account  to  me please.   I  want  to know what  

you are going to spend and how i t  is going to  

be spent  because i t  is a matter of  concern to  

me.”  

 Correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And the expendi ture recovery plan 

was in effect  the response? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .  I f  we can go over the page 

please to page 204 and there you deal  wi th the advance 

payment system.  We have heard much evidence about i t  but  

there may be mat ters you could clar i fy;  corroborate or even 

add to the evidence that  has been given and we wi l l  deal  

wi th that  now.  But  we wi l l  not  deal  wi th everything that  you 

have said here.   The meet ing that  took p lace in October  20 

before the Technical  MINMAC meet ing you say here of  29 

October was the meet ing at  which the plan was presented by 

Mr Zwane, is that  correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you have spoken about the 
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responses to that  plan f rom var ious people including 

part icular ly your own response. 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   But  is i t  correct  in paragraph 80 

where you say:  

“During the meet ing the MEC advised those 

present  that  he had come up wi th the plan. ”  

 Is that  your recol lect ion of  what happened? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In other words the or ig ins of  the p lan 10 

where did th is plan or ig inate as far as you are concerned? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   From the MEC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And he explained then what that  p lan 

would involve and that  was essent ia l ly buying mater ia l  for 

bui ld ing projects f rom suppl iers and paying for those in  

advance.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you emphasise that  at  the stage 

that  the payments would be made there would be no 

contractual  obl igat ion on the Department to pay the bui ld ing 20 

contractor for those mater ia ls.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct  because the cont ractors wi l l  

have – in terms of  the cont ract  the in i t ia l  cont ract  they wi l l  

have to procure the mater ia l  themselves.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So we have been through this but  
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just  to summarise the or ig ina l  contract  wi th the contractor  

speci f ied that  that  contractor had to  purchase the mater ia ls;  

put  them in the bui ld ings that  detai led and sophist icated 

process of  checks and balances that  you have discussed 

with the Chair  and told the Chai r  about  involving expert 

assessments and the l ike and repor ts would then be fol lowed 

and only then would the mater ia ls be paid for but  pa id to the 

contractor,  correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Without  any of  those checks and 10 

balances being adhered to payments were now being made 

to the – the suppl iers? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In advance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now given that  as you say and other 

wi tnesses have said that  the cont racts that  the Department 

would conclude with the contractors included the obl igat ion 

of  the contractor to buy the mater ia l  – bui ld ing mater ia l  i f  I  

understand correct ly.   In other words i f  i t  was said that  the 

contractor would be paid R50 000.00 per house or your 20 

housing uni t  or  R72 000.00 or  whatever that  included 

whatever the cont ractor would use in terms of  money would 

use to buy the mater ia l .   Is that  r ight  or do I  misunderstand 

something? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   That  is correct  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So when therefore Mr Zwane came 

with the idea that  the Department should buy mater ia l  –  

bui ld ing mater ia l  for the contractors he in effect  was coming 

up wi th an idea in  terms of  which the Department was going 

to pay for something that  i t  d id not  need to pay for 

addi t ional ly.   In  other words the Department was – the 

Departments ’ payment would have included the bui ld ing 

mater ia l  when they paid the contractors.   Now paying for the 

mater ia l  in terms of  th is proposal  was actual ly not  necessary 

as far as the bui ld ing mater ia l  is concerned.  Because even i f  10 

that  the Department did not  pay that  money that  would be 

taking care of  as and when the contractor  was paid af ter  

those mi lestones had been reached.  Or am I  confusing you? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   No Chai r.   I  was l istening to what you are 

saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes in other words I  just  want to – because 

I  have not  heard any wi tness who has come before you and I  

have not  heard you say this but  maybe because I  have not  

asked you.   I  have not  heard anybody saying in terms of  th is  

proposal  by Mr Zwane i f  the Department paid for the bui ld ing 20 

mater ia l  in the way and [00:22:54]  his proposal  then the 

pr ice that  the Department  was going to pay for the bui ld ing 

of  a house – each housing uni t  would be reduced because i t  

otherwise had inc luded whatever the cont ractor would have 

used to buy mater ia l .   But  now i t  is a dupl icat ion.  
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MR MAXATSHWA:   Let  me explain in th is way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r.   A uni t  cost  R55 000.00.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   As – for a 40 square meter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   House.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   That  is what we refer to as a Bantam.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Amount al located per uni t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   That  quantum is then dist r ibuted as per  

the i tems.   There are i tems that  const i tute that  part icular 

Bantam.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes to say what is  included in th is.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja what is inc luded labour,  foundat ion 

bui ld ing mater ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   P lumbing.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   And so forth.  

CHAIRPERSON:   yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   That  wi l l  compr ises – that  wi l l  comprise 

of  – comprise the pr ice of  R55 000.00.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Then you take – say for instance you pay 

money on mi lestone 1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja foundat ion.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   For foundat ion for the mater ia l .   You wi l l  

then take say for  instance mi lestone 1 was R10 000.00 you 

wi l l  then take the R10 000.00 in terms of  the mater ia l  that  

needs to  be procured and pay i t  over  to  the contractor to  

procure the mater ia l .   The system – on the system i f  the 

contractor says I  need as per the quotat ion I  need R8 000.00 10 

you wi l l  pay in  R8 000.00 and then you wi l l  keep the 

R2 000.00 so that  when he cla ims for the foundat ion 

mi lestone you pay the remainder of  R2 000.00.   Yes.   So you 

wi l l  have paid the mater ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   But  there would be a remainder to  

complete the total  amount of  that  part icu lar mi lestone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  I  th ink the – the – my quest ion is  

whether Mr Zwane’s proposal  necessari ly meant that  the 

Department would pay twice for the mater ia l  or whether i t  d id 20 

not  mean that  in the end even i f  h is proposal  was 

implemented and the mater ia l  was bought in terms of  his  

proposal  the Department was going to make sure that  that  is  

set  off  somehow when i t  comes to the contractual  amount 

per house that  would have been agreed to wi th the 
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contractor.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja the lat ter statement… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There was not  going to be a dupl icat ion in 

terms of  money spent  on mater ia l?  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Thank you.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   At  paragraph 83 and fo l lowing you 

having descr ibed the plan or having summarised the plan 10 

that  was presented by Mr Zwane at  the October meet ing you 

summarise then the response you have given the evidence 

but  perhaps we could put  th is on record.   At  paragraph 83 

you say:  

“The opinion of  the meet ing that  is in  

response to Mr Zwane’s proposal  was that  

such a payment system would be i l legal  

because the Human – the housing subsidy 

scheme Pol icy f ramework d id not  provide for  

advance payments. ”  20 

 So there were a number of  problems not  only in 

re lat ion to advance payments in the Divis ion Revenue Act  

and other regulatory provisions which you have deal t  wi th.   I t  

was also in contravent ion of  the HSS Pol icy,  correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct  Chai r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Because the HSS Pol icy is very 

detai led about the mi lestone system. 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Interest ing ly i t  was sought  to deal 

wi th that  problem by put t ing another mi lestone in  for  

advance payments.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Correct  Chai r  because the system is  

owned by the Department  and then when you want any 

changes to be int roduced.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MAXATSHWA:   You send a request  but  your request  wi l l  

be interrogated by those that  administer the system at  Head 

Off ice to say,  what do you want to do?  This is what you want  

to do – no i t  is not  possib le or i t  is possible.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes wel l  to descr ibe an advance 

payment as a mi lestone having been reached i t  is a  bi t  of  a  

contradict ion in terms, is i t  not? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja,  ja I  agree.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A mi lestone is the achievement of  

certain progress whereas an advance payment is exact ly the 20 

opposi te.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you make that  po int  in paragraph 

83 which we do not  need then to deal  wi th anymore but  Mr 

Zwane’s response to the cr i t ic isms of  his plan you 



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 97 of 130 
 

summarise in paragraph 85 what did he say? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Chai r  Mr Zwane said he was advised as 

per the lawfulness of  the scheme.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Did he say i t  had been used in other  

provinces? 

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja he said i t  has been used in  Gauteng 

that  is why Muso was commissioned to go and research.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You gave evidence ear l ier that  i t  had 

not  worked in Gauteng.  

MR MAXATSHWA:   Ja when I  was si t t ing at  Technical  10 

MINMAC of  the 18 November the Gauteng guys conf i rmed 

that .   You are put t ing yoursel f  at  r isk.   I t  does not  work.    

CHAIRPERSON :    And d id you subsequent ly share that  

feedback wi th Mr Mokoena and Mr Zwane by any chance? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  th is is what the Gauteng people 

say? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    But  in any event ,  i t  was at  that  20 

meet ing that  Mr Tsoametsi  was mandated to go and research 

and come back wi th an answer? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And we have deal t  wi th the answer 

he came back wi th and you have annexed i t  to your 
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statement.   We can go over the page to the summary of  the 

Advanced Payment System in paragraph 96.    

 And that  fa i r ly summarises the evidence that  you have 

got  in the agreement.   In your  aff idavi t  rather.   And the 

evidence we have heard f rom other wi tnesses.    

 Perhaps you could just  read onto record what your  

summary is on paragraph 96 on page 207.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  say on paragraph 96 that :  

“The Advanced Payment System, therefore,  

emanated f rom Mr Zwane, the MEC.  I t  was 10 

designed and detai led by Mr  Tsoametsi  and 

approved by the HOD of  the Department of  Human 

Sett lements,  Mr Mokoena. ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    We are going back now because we 

have deal t  at  var ious t imes wi th  the contents of  var ious 

meet ings,  but  we have the t ime and just  in case we leave 

anything out  f rom your statement,  perhaps we should deal  

wi th the contents of  paragraphs 97 and fol lowing.  

 In paragraph 97,  you say you conveyed the out l ines of  

the proposed advanced payment plan proposed by the MEC 20 

to the Techman Mac Meet ing of  October 2010.  Correct?  Did 

you do that? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    My apologies.   That  is in a meet ing of 

November 2010.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  



23 SEPTEMBER 2020 – DAY 270 
 

Page 99 of 130 
 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So we should change paragraph 97.   

That  was on the one of  the 18t h of  November,  is that  correct? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  that  was the one on November,  

18t h.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Right .   And i t  was at  that  meet ing or 

in respect  of  that  meet ing that  the HOD had tendered his 

apologies.   Mr Zwane was also not  there.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Af ter the meet ing. . .  wel l ,  at  that  10 

meet ing,  you have told the Chair  that  you were advised that  

advanced payments as contemplated by the MEC would be 

unlawful .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You have also added during the 

course of  your answers that  the representat ives of  the 

Gauteng department gave a simi lar  warning.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Af ter the meet ing,  did you speak to  

Mr Mokoena? 20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.   Immediately  af ter the 

meet ing,  I  cal led Mr Mokoena.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now, or you wi l l  recal l  that  th is  

meet ing is on the 18t h of  November and we have not  yet  

received Mr Tsoametsi ’s  memorandum of  the 
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25t h  of  November.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So what did you tel l  Mr Mokoena? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  said to Mr Mokoena on the phone, the 

ERP has not  approved.   Money is going to be taken f rom us.  

The idea of  the Advanced Payment System is also 

discouraged unlawful .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And d id you say who he should 

speak to about  th is? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Come again,  SC?  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    When you spoke to Mr Mokoena, 

what was your expectat ion as to  who Mr Mokoena would 

re lay your informat ion to? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja,  my expectat ion was that  Mr Mokoena 

wi l l  re lay the informat ion to the execut ing author i ty which is  

the MEC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Mr Zwane.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In case we are not  in. . .  we have not  

been ent i re ly accurate in our discussions wi th the wi tnesses 20 

to date on the consequences of  the Nat ional  Department and 

Treasury’s reject ion of  the expendi ture recovery plan.    

 I t  seems that  nat ional ,  the Nat ional  Department  of  

Human Sett lements and Treasury were not  as i t  were taking 

in by the expendi ture recovery plan.   Is that  correct? 
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MR MAXATSHWA :    You mean, they did not  buy the idea? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja,  the Nat ional  Department d id  not  buy 

the idea.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And deducted money anyway.    

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja,  they took R 230 mi l l ion away f rom 

us.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Leaving over a bi l l ion rand st i l l  to be 

spent .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Chai r.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And I  take i t ,  no one had to ld  

Nat ional  or Treasury that ,  we have heard this evidence,  that  

you had a p lan B as i t  were,  the Advanced Payment System? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    I f  I  may recal l ,  there was a meet ing 

wi th. . .  at  the Provincial  Treasury.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I  am talk ing about Nat ional  Treasury.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No.   Yes,  I  am coming. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Oh,  I  am sorry.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    There was a meet ing wi th the Provincial  

Treasury,  where Mr Mokoena presented the monitor ing of  the 20 

expendi ture.   And in that  meet ing,  usual ly have. . .  they cal l  

h im the CEO of  Provincial  Treasury but  is  the HOD, in  

essence,  of  Provincial  Treasury.    

 And because we.. .  the department was in ser ious 

t rouble,  he did not  canvas as the HOD of  Treasury to say:  
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Yes,  p lease accompany us to go and see the Nat ional  

Treasury in Pretor ia.    

 A meet ing was arranged.  I  was part  of  that  part icular 

meet ing wi th the HOD, the then CFO, Ms Danny Hatt ingh and 

f rom the Nat ional  Human Sett lement there was an act ing 

Treasurer.    

 We.. .  and then our provincial ,  the head of  department.   

To go and talk and report .   Mr Mokoena is to report  h imsel f  

to the Nat ional  Treasury in terms of  what is happening.   Why 

the expendi ture and the l ikes.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Was the proposed solut ion,  the 

Advanced Payment System discussed at  that  meet ing? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  was d iscussed and the Nat ional  

Treasury said:   Look,  we are not  for the idea.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Right .   So i t  was discussed.   And 

was i t . . .  were they told that  you are going ahead anyway with 

the plan? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    We returned back to the province and I  

bel ieve Mr Mokoena had discussions wi th  the MEC.  I  was 

not  part  of  that .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Wel l ,  we know that  i t  was decided to 

go ahead with the plan,  nevertheless.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  that  is what happened.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Chai r,  is th is a convenient  t ime?  We 

wi l l  f in ish short ly af ter the lunch adjournment.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  that  is f ine.   Let  us take the 

lunch adjournment and we wi l l  resume at  two.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Mr  Maxatshwa,  

can we go to  paragraph 104.1  p lease?  On page 208 and 

209 you dea l  w i th  the  advance payment  sys tem,  much o f  

tha t  i s  on  reco rd  a t  the  moment  and we are  rea l l y  have 

your  conf i rmat ion  on  the  a f f idav i t  bu t  there  are  a  few 10 

quest ions ar i s ing  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  to  you.  

 Who chose the  cont rac tors  tha t  were  to  be  a l loca ted  

un i ts  to  bu i ld?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  i s  the  MEC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  anyone ever  say to  the  MEC 

look,  you know,  tha t  i s  rea l l y  our  job  in  the  depar tment ,  

you know,  i t  i s  an  opera t iona l  mat te r,  i t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  fo r  

an  MEC.   Was tha t  i ssue ever  ra ised?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r,  i t  was supposed to  be  ra ised by  

the  HOD.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  d id  he  ra ise  i t?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Not  as  fa r  as  I  know.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Wel l ,  he  gave ev idence yesterday,  tha t  

i s  the  HOD of  the  t ime,  Mr  Mokoena,  you know,  tha t  there  

was a  prac t ice  in  the  depar tment  wh ich  had gone fo r  some 
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t ime tha t  the  MEC,  whoever  the  MEC was a t  any par t i cu la r  

po in t  in  t ime,  wou ld  be  the  one who wou ld  p ick  the  

cont rac tors  who shou ld  be  g iven cont rac ts .   Now you were  

in  the  depar tmen t  fo r  a  long t ime ,  do  you know anyth ing  

about  such a  prac t ice?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    When I  jo ined  the  depar tment  in  2009,  

espec ia l l y  the  hous ing  par t ,  p ro jec ts  were  a l ready runn ing  

but  in  p repara t ion  o f  the  2010/2011 there  was a  l i s t  that  

was s igned o f f  by  MEC Mafereka  wh ich  ind i ca ted  tha t  he 

had an input  on  i t  and he approved  i t .   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  be fore  Mr  Zwane?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Now wi th  Mr  Zwane,  I  saw in  Mr  

Mokhes i ’s  a f f idav i t  where  he  is  mak ing  re ference to  NM14,  

wh ich  is  the  l i s t  o f  the  cont rac to rs .   A t  the  bo t tom i t  i s  the 

s ignature  o f  Mr  Zwane and the  da te  when i t  was approved.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i s  tha t  a  document  tha t  you  saw in  

the  bund le  here  or  i s  tha t  a  document  tha t  i s  somewhere  

e lse?  20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  i t  i s  in  the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MAXATSHWA:    Yes as  par t  o f  the  annexures to  h is  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  d id  no t  p ick  tha t  up .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We wi l l  look  a t  tha t ,  perhaps  f ind  i t  

in  the  next  few minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say i t  i s  a t tached to  the  

a f f idav i t  o f?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    O f  Mr  Mokhes i ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  NM14.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you  very  much.   A t  the  t ime 

the  advance payment  sys tem was  be ing  imp lemented -  we  

have been to ld  tha t  there  were  th ree  se ts  o f  con t rac ts .   

The f i rs t  was the  cont rac t  w i th  the  cont rac tor  and we know 10 

what  i t  sa id  about  who was respons ib le  fo r  sourc ing  

supp l ies  and pay ing  the  supp l ie r  in  tha t  cont rac t  and when  

the  depar tment ’s  ob l iga t ion  to  pay the  cont rac to r  wou ld  

ar ise .   We unders tand tha t .  

 The second leve l  o f  cont rac t  was the  t r ipar t i te  

agreement ,  the  bu i ld ing  mater ia l ,  supp ly  agreement  wh ich  

invo l ved the  supp l ie r,  the  cont rac tor  and the  depar tment ,  

cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  th i rd  was the  so-ca l led  20 

cess ion  ag reement  where  the  c la im or  the  payment  fo r  

supp l ies  was ceded by  the  cont rac tor  to  the  supp l ie r.   Do  

you reca l l  tha t  cont rac t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And we know,  o f  course ,  tha t  tha t  
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rea l l y  –  tha t  cess ion  was rea l l y  no t  a  va l id  o r  rea l  cess ion  

because c la im was not  in  ex is tence a t  the  t ime tha t  

cess ion  was s igned.   We know tha t .   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  in te res t ing l y  you  say a t  

parag raph 104.3  tha t  a l l  the  cont rac ts  were  s igned  a t  the  

same t ime.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  even more  s t range because  

you are  s ign ing  a  cess ion  ag reement  and a  supp ly  10 

agreement  wh ich  cont rad i c ts  the  cont rac t  agreement  and 

the  cess ion  ag reement ,  the  cess ion  has no t  even  ar isen.   

D id  these anomal ies  s t r i ke  anybody?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  what  happened,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  

be fore  cont rac to rs  were  appo in ted  there  were  br ie f ing  

sess ions in  te rms  o f  what  i s  go ing  to  be  un fo ld ing  in  te rms  

o f  the  advance payment  sys tem.    

The MEC led  tha t  b r ie f ing  sess ions,  they were  he ld  

d is t r i c t  by  d i s t r i c t ,  to  say  to  cont rac tors  –  we  met  w i th  the 

cont rac tors  f i rs t  and sa id  to  them guys,  th is  i s  how we a re  20 

go ing  to  move.   You w i l l  be  s igned cont rac t ,  you  w i l l  be  

a l loca ted  houses,  th is  i s  how much you have been 

a l loca ted ,  each cont rac to r.   And then you a re  go ing  to  s ign  

an  agreement  w i th  the  depar tment .   Because we a re  in  a  

rush,  you are  go ing  to  s ign  a  t r ipar t i te  agreement  w i th  us  
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and a  mater ia l  supp l ie r  tha t  w i l l  be  supp ly ing  you w i th  

mater ia l .  

You w i l l  go  and conduct  your  own mater ia l  supp ly  in  

your  own space.   For  ins tance,  i f  I  was in  Welkom,  I  w i l l  go  

to  the  Welkom bu i ld ing  mater ia l  supp l ie r,  Corobr ik  o r  

whoever,  and say look,  g ive  me a  quota t ion ,  I  want  to  go 

and s ign  th i s  par t i cu la r  agreement .  

A f te r  those br ie f ings ,  cont rac tors  were  l i ke  

sc reaming to  the  depar tment  to  come and s ign  the  f i rs t  

cont rac t  tha t  a l loca tes  them work ,  the  second cont rac t ,  10 

t r ipar t i te  and a  cess ion  agreement  a t  the  same t ime fo r  th is  

scheme to  happen in  any way.  

But  I  must  a lso  qua l i f y,  Cha i r,  tha t  a l l  those  

par t i cu la r  ins t ruments ,  the  th ree  ins t ruments  were  a  

product  o f  the  s ta te  lega l  adv isers  on  the  f i rs t  f loor  

because they had an input  in to  those par t i cu la r  cont rac ts  

as  lega l  gu rus .    

Ours  was to  g ive  them the  techn ica l  th ink ing  in  

te rms o f  the  quant i t ies  tha t  w i l l  be  there  and the  techn ica l  

–  what  you normal ly  ca l l  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  as  to  what  you  20 

need to  see in  the  house and they w i l l  d ra f t  the  cont rac t  

and bounce them amongst  themse lves and f ina l i se  them 

because tha t  was  the  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  came f rom a  cab ine t  

to  say no  pro jec ts  w i l l  happen in  the  depar tment  bes ides  

the  depar tment  bounc ing  a l l  those  par t i cu la r  cont rac ts  w i th  
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the  four th  f loo r,  the  fou r th  f loor  be ing  the  Premier ’s  o f f i ce  

in  the  Free S ta te .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  there  i s  ev idence tha t  these 

cont rac ts  d id  no t  ge t  there ,  there  i s  cont rad i c to ry  ev idence 

tha t  th is  cont rac t  d id  ge t  there ,  bu t  tha t  i s  Mr Venter ’s  

o f f i ce .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  Mr  Venter ’s  o f f i ce .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  there  i s  ev idence tha t  these 

cont rac ts  never  go t  to  h im.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  go  –  10 

maybe look a t  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  our  d i sc ip l inary  hear ing ,  

there  was somebody tha t  tes t i f ied ,  a  lady,  I  happen to  have 

fo rgo t ten  her  name,  f rom the  o f f i ce  o f  Mr  Venter  who came 

and tes t i f ied  on  those par t i cu la r  cont rac ts .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  

ev idence but  they  ought  to  have gone there  fo r  ve t t ing .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And any lawyer  who looked a t  th is  

mess o f  cont rac t s  wou ld  have conc luded tha t  they cannot  

a l l  s i t  together  and the  exp lanat ion  you have g iven tha t  20 

there  was a  br ie f ing  sess ion  on ly  makes i t  worse  because 

you have a  ve rba l  b r ie f ing  sess ion  exp la in ing  one th ing  

and you have th ree  cont rac t s  tha t  cannot  l i ve  together  

exp la in ing  another  sys tem.   I t  does not  he lp  to  have a  

br ie f ing  sess ion  where  you g ive  a  ve rba l  exp lana t ion  to  
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con t rac tors  and supp l ie rs ,  how th ings are  go ing  to  work  

and then you have a  wr i t ten  s igned cont rac t  wh ich  appears  

to  be  comple te ly  cont rad i c to ry  and  none o f  these cont rac ts  

can l i ve  w i th  one anothe r.   I t  i s  jus t  an  unacceptab le  mess,  

sure ly?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  agree w i th  you,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Then le t  us  go  to  pa ragraphs 105,  

6  and 7 .   Bas ica l l y,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  th is  co l lec t ion  o f  

cont rac ts ,  the  wr i t ing ,  the  wr i t ten  cont rac t s  a re  used to  

jus t i f y  payments ,  no t  the  ve rba l  s ide  agreements .  10 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Paragraph 110,  what  do  you say  

there?  Sor ry,  pe rhaps we had bet te r  p lace  on reco rd  what  

you say  in  parag raph 109 because tha t  concerns you and 

your  ev idence.   D id  you ever  s ign  any o f  the  cont rac ts  

wh ich  fo rm par t  o f  the  advance payment  sys tem? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    D id  you eve r  co l la te  a l l  these 

cont rac ts  and p lace them on the  HSS sys tem,  the  hous ing  

subs idy  sys tem? 20 

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  an  e lec t ron ic  subsystem is  

i t  no t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And in  fac t  tha t  sys tem,  wh ich  was 
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p icked up by  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  or  the  Nat iona l  

Depar tment  CFO to  learn  tha t  advance payments  were  

be ing  made,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  the  sys tem we a re  re fe r r ing  to .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And d id  you ever  hand any  

cont rac ts  o r  invo ices to  the  f inanc ia l  depar tment  fo r  

p rocess ing  and payment?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    When d id  you become aware ,  as  

you say in  pa rag raph 110,  tha t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  these  10 

payments  were  made on th is  co l lec t ion ,  to  pu t  i t  po l i te ly,  o f  

cont rac ts  tha t  ma ter ia ls  were  in  fac t  never  supp l ied  by  the  

t ime payments  were  made.   What  a re  you say ing  there?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    Cha i r,  as  you move around in  

mon i to r i ng  th rough your  s i te  meet ings,  somet imes you w i l l  

see  tha t  no th ing  is  happen ing  on s i te .   But  th is  cont rac tor,  

when you look in to  the  HSS,  he  has been pa id ,  mater ia l  

supp ly  has been  pa id ,  you asked yourse l f  bu t  how is  i t  

happen ing  tha t  there  is  no  mater ia l ,  there  i s  no  

const ruc t ion  on  s i te?   As you were  s i t t ing  in  the  war  room,  20 

we were  mon i to r ing  everybody ’s  per fo rmance by  s imp ly  

tak ing  a  phone and ca l l ing  tha t  par t i cu la r  cont rac to r  to  say  

what  i s  happen ing ,  a re  you on s i te?    

The cont rac to r  w i l l  te l l  you  many s to r ies .   No,  I  

have not  rece ived a  mate r ia l  wadda,  wadda and the  
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mater ia l  supp l ie r  has go t  my money and I  am s t i l l  wa i t ing .   

Most ly  they were  compla in ing  Corobr i k  has no t  come to  us  

and we are  las t  on  the  l i s t  and s tu f f  l i ke  tha t .   Then you  

know tha t  mater ia l  has no t  been supp l ied  and payment  has 

been advanced a l ready.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say th is  in fo rmat ion  came to  

the  knowledge o f  the  war  room whi l s t  the  advance payment  

sys tem was be ing  put  in to  p lace?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i t  mus t  have been apparent  to  10 

those o f f i c ia l s  inc lud ing  sen ior  o f f i c ia ls  and Mr  Zwane tha t  

the  sys tem was not  work ing .  

MR MAXATSH WA:    I t  was because there  were  repor ts  

genera ted  by  the  war  room.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  then why was i t  no t  s topped?  I  

mean,  you have a  sys tem,  you are  to ld  i t  i s  i l l ega l ,  you  

know i t  i s  i l l ega l ,  you never the less  –  and I  am ta lk ing  you 

in  p lu ra l  no t  you r  persona l ly,  one has a  sys tem,  one is  to ld  

i t  i s  i l l ega l ,  one beg ins  to  imp lement  the  sys tem,  one sees 

tha t  the  sys tem i s  no t  work ing ,  you are  pay ing  money and 20 

no houses are  be ing  bu i l t  because there  is  no  de l i very  o f  

mater ia l s ,  why was i t  no t  s topped? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Because the  MEC be l ieved tha t  i t  w i l l  

work .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  he  knew i t  was not  work ing .  
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MR MAXATSH WA:    He knew i t  was not  work ing  because o f  

the  repor ts .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    On tha t  no te  le t  us  look a t  FS14 i f  

you wou ld .   Thank you fo r  d rawing th is  to  our  a t ten t ion .   

Perhaps you shou ld  come jo in  our  team.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I t  w i l l  be  my p leasure ,  SC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  you  look a t  page 223,  what  i s  

th is  document?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me get  there  f i rs t .   223 you sa id?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    FS14.   What  i s  th is  document?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    I t  i s  a  l i s t  o f  cont rac tors  and the  

a l loca t ions and the  areas where  the  cont rac tors  were  

a l loca ted .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  there  are  two e lements  

tha t  a re  pu t  in to  th is  document .   One,  the  ident i t y  o f  the  

cont rac tors  who a re  go ing  to  rece ive  cont rac ts  o r  who have  

rece ived cont rac ts ,  cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    As  we l l  as  the  number  o f  un i t s  tha t  

they have been a l loca ted  to  bu i ld .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And,  o f  cou rse ,  the  areas f rom 

which  they come.  
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MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  you  look a t  page 225  you w i l l  

see  there  a  s igna ture .   Do you recogn ise  tha t  s igna ture?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    That  i s  the  s ignature  o f  MEC Zwane.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t  and i t  i s  da ted  the  10  

September  2010.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Oh,  tha t  i s  page  225 o f  

bund le  FS14,  so  tha t  i s  the  s ignatu re  appear ing  next  to  the 

da te  10 /09/2010.  10 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Mr  Zwane ’s  s ignature .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and you know i t  we l l?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wou ld  go  to  parag raph 116 p lease? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Paragraph o f  page?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Oh,  I  am so r ry,  Cha i r,  back to  

bund le  FS12.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Page 212.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You have paragraph 116?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say in  tha t  paragraph:  

“Accord ing  to  my  reco l lec t ion  the  advance payment  

sys tem was not  s topped in  February  2011 by  Mr  

Mokoena as  account ing  o f f i cer  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  

Human Set t lemen ts  desp i te  a  meet ing  wh ich  he ,  the  

MEC,  Mr  Zwane,  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r  o f  the  

Free S ta te  P rov ince and Mr  Tsoamets i  had w i th  the  

Nat iona l  Depar tment . ”  

Le t  us  beg in  w i th  the  meet ing .   What  meet ing  are  you 

re fer r i ng  to  there? 10 

MR MAXATSHWA:   I t  i s  the  meet ing  be tween  Min i s te r  

Sexwale  and the  MEC and HOD and a l l  those tha t  a re  

re f lec ted  there ,  the  CFO and Mr  Tsoamets i .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And were  you a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  was not  in  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    How do you know what  happened 

a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Mr  Mokoena came and b r ie fed  us .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  wha t  d id  he  say to  you?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Mr  Mokoena sa id  Mr  Sexwale  adv i sed 20 

them tha t  the  scheme tha t  they  were  imp lement ing  was 

un lawfu l  and they  must  s top  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   Now Mr  Mokoena ’s  

ev idence is  tha t  he  in  fac t  took s teps to  s top  i t .   Do you 

know anyth ing  about  tha t?  
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MR MAXATSHWA:    Cha i r,  there  shou ld  have been an 

ins t ruc t ion  to  the  CFO but  I  do  no t  remember  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  do  you know whether  there  

was any ins t ruc t ion  to  the  CFO in  pursuance  o f  th is  

ins t ruc t ion  g i ven by  the  Nat iona l  M in is te r?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Do you  know whether  payments  

cont inued?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  know because on the  HSS 

sys tem they were  s t i l l  runn ing ,  those par t i cu la r  payments .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  d id  you see the  ev idence o f  

the  payments  be ing  made? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say i t  was on the  HSS sys tem 

tha t  payments  were  be ing  made,  what  d id  you see  on the  

HSS sys tem?  How d id  you come to  learn  o f  th is  and what  

d id  you do about  i t?  

MR MAXATSHWA:     I  had the  v iewing r igh ts  o f  what  i s  

happen ing  on the  HSS then I  w i l l  go  and v iew and check 

what  i s  happen ing  on the  HSS.   20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  do  you know whethe r  these 

payments  were  made to  supp l ie rs  in  advance? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  know tha t  payments  were  

made to  the  supp l ie rs  in  advance  because they w i l l  come 

knock ing  a t  my door  and say look,  we are  wa i t ing  fo r  you r  
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con t rac tors  to  come and co l lec t  the i r  mater ia l ,  we have 

been pa id .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i f  one wanted to  ve r i f y  you r  

ev idence and unders tand whether  the  ev idence  o f  Mr  

Mokoena and Mr  Mokhes i  was co r rec t  one cou ld  go  to  the 

HSS sys tem and see the  payments  l i s ted  there .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  wou ld  g i ve  one  enough  

in fo rmat ion  to  de termine tha t  these were  indeed advance  

payment  sys tem payments  be ing  made a f te r  February  2011.  10 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Ja ,  they w i l l  be  captured by  da tes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wou ld  i t  be  an  answer  to  say we l l ,  

these payments  were  made in  te rms o f  ob l iga t ion  wh ich  

had ar i sen pr io r  to  February  2011 when we were  jus t  

c lea r ing  ou t  the  sys tem,  bu t  we entered in to  no  new 

agreements  a f te r  Feb?  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r,  tha t  –  I  w i l l  no t  say  prec ise ly  i t  

was -  in fo rmat ion  was ente red v ia  the  new con t rac tua l  

ob l iga t ions because,  I  mean,  money was spent  p r io r  and  

there  was a  sys tem over load,  peop le  –  the  in fo rmat ion  was  20 

s t i l l  be ing  captured as  we move a long.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  may be a  techn ica l  

exp lanat ion  fo r  i t  o r  a  computer -based in fo rmat ion  or  a  

da tabase exp lana t ion  bu t  I  do  no t  in tend to  suggest  to  you  

tha t  when a  dec is ion  i s  made to  s top  and an ins t ruc t ion  i s  
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g iven to  s top  payments  tha t  they  shou ld  no t  be  s topped,  

the  cont rac ts  were  un lawfu l ,  anyway,  so  the re  was no 

reason to  cont inue pay ing  jus t  because an agreement  had 

been s igned before  February.   So I  am not  suggest ing  i t  

was but  there  are  two s i tua t ions  tha t  cou ld  have  ar isen 

here .   One –  we l l ,  le t  me put  i t  to  you th is  way.    

The f i rs t  i s  tha t  these were  mere ly  the  process ing  o f  

payments  ag reed  to  be fore  February,  no t  excusab le ,  in  our  

submiss ions to  t he  Cha i r  eventua l l y,  bu t  never the less  an  

exp lanat ion ,  however  unsat is fac to ry.   10 

 The o ther  i s  tha t  even a f te r  February  new cont rac t s  

were  be ing  entered in to  fo r  advance payments .   Do you 

know whethe r  tha t  happened? 

MR MAXATSH WA:    Cha i r,  tha t  w i l l  be  the  po in t  to  be  

invest iga ted  because i f  you capture  someth ing  by  the  da te ,  

a l l  the  documents  tha t  you are  captur ing  w i l l  have a  

re f lec ted  date  when they were  s igned.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  okay.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  tha t  in fo rmat ion  in to  wh ich  20 

ca tegory  i t  fa l l s  wou ld  be  ava i lab le  on  the  HSS sys tem.  

MR MAXATSH WA:    Ja ,  you w i l l  have the  HSS sys tem 

re f lec t ing  the  da tes ,  then you w i l l  go  to  those payment  

adv ices and the  suppor t ing  documents  to  de termine exact ly  

when the  document  was s igned and submi t ted  because  
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there  w i l l  a lso  be  a  s tamp on them.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   Wel l ,  we w i l l  have to  look  a t  

tha t .   Thank you fo r  tha t .   I  jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you FS12 a t  

page 450,  i f  you  wou ld  go  there ,  p lease.   Th is  i s  the 

s ta tement  o f  Mr  Ber tus  Vente r,  the  lega l  adv iser  who l i ves  

on  the  four th  f loor,  as  you ment ioned.   Cor rec t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    FS12?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Page 450.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    450.   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have –  oh ,  450.   

My apo log ies ,  Cha i r,  I  was look ing  a t  FS14,  sor ry.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  you  cou ld  go  to  450,  i t  i s  tha t  

bund le ,  p lease.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  am a t  450.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  th is  i s  a  page f rom the  

a f f idav i t  p resented to  the  Commiss ion  by  Mr  Vente r  who is  

a  lega l  adv iser  i n  the  Off i ce  o f  the  Premier  F ree S ta te ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?   Wel l ,  I  am …[ in tervenes]  

MR MAXATSHWA :    I  am on ly  see ing  i t  now,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  we l l  you can accept  what  I  am 

say ing ,  you can t rus t  me on tha t .  20 

MR MAXATSH WA:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  am tak ing  your  

word ,  SC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  I  want  to  pu t  to  you 

what  i s  in  paragraph 7 .   I f  you  take  issue w i th  tha t  you can 

check whether  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  h is  a f f idav i t  o r  no t  bu t  in  
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parag raph 7  on  page 450 o f  FS12 Mr  Vente r  says the  

fo l low ing.   He says and I  quote :  

“Ne i ther  me nor  any o f  the  o ther  s ta te  law adv ise rs  

in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  was invo lved in  any o f  

the  processes when the  i n i t ia l  t ransfer  o f  money to  

bu i ld ing  mater ia ls  supp l ie rs  took p lace.   No one in  

the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premie r  p rov ided a  lega l  op in ion  on 

the  issue o f  the  i n i t ia l  t ransfe r  o f  the  money to  the  

bu i ld ing  mater ia l  supp l ie rs  and  we were  never  

requested to  do  so .   I  have no idea why the  s ta te  10 

law adv isers  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Premier  was. . . ”  

I  read i t  as  i t  i s .  

“ . . .was not  invo l ved by  the  Depar tment  o f  Human 

Set t lements . ”  

Now I  unders tand i t  wou ld  no t  have been your  

respons ib i l i t y  to  make su re  tha t  th is  was done but  were  you 

aware  o f  a  requ i rement  tha t  the  Premie r  ac tua l l y  pu t  in  

p lace  tha t  cont rac ts  shou ld  ac tua l l y  be  submi t ted  to  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Prem ier,  lega l  adv i se rs?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  was aware .   There  was a  20 

le t te r  wr i t ten  by  the  fo rmer  DG o f  the  Free S ta te 

Government ,  Dr  [ ind is t inc t ]  29 .08  to  a l l  HODs ins t ruc t ing  

them to  go  th i s  rou te  o f  bounc ing  a l l  the  cont rac t  lega l  

documents  w i th  the  s ta te  law adv isers .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And i f  tha t  d i rec t i ve  was not  
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obeyed and de l ibera te ly  no t  obeyed,  i t  was a  ser ious 

omiss ion ,  you wou ld  ag ree w i th  tha t?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r,  as  I  have ment ioned,  in  te rms o f  

my reco l lec t ion ,  the  lady tha t  came f rom the  s ta te  law  

adv isers  to  come and tes t i f y  dur ing  our  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  

came because we  were  quest ion ing  the i r  invo lvement  on  a l l  

those lega l  ins t ruments .  They w i l l  no t  even have come to  a  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  i f  they  were  no t  invo lved  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l  we can look a t  the  t ransc r ip t  

o f  the  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  and make the  necessary  10 

submiss ions or  dea l  w i th  i t  in  la te r  ev idence,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  

mat te rs  d i rec t l y  w i th in  your  knowledge,  a l though i t  

ser ious ly  a f fec ted  the  ou tcome o f  your  d i sc ip l inary  hear ing .  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  there  anyth ing  e lse  Mr  

Maxatshwa tha t  we have not  dea l t  w i th  tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  

to  te l l  the  Cha i r  about ,  in  re la t ion  to  the  mat te rs  we have 

dea l t  w i th  today?  

MR MAXATSHWA :   Yes Cha i r.   I f  g ran ted an oppor tun i ty   

Cha i r  my f i rs t  i ssue w i l l  be  to  ca l l  fo r  your  ass is tance in  20 

te rms o f  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  our  d isc ip l inary  hear ing .   Th i s 

mat te r  has taken to l l  on  I  am not  say ing  –  sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you want  to  d r ink  water.     

MR MAXATSHWA :    Cha i r  when we began th is  road seven 

years  ago,  the re  were  s i x  o f  us ,  se lec t i ve l y  charged 
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un fa i r l y.    In  the  process o f  t rave l l ing  th is  road and  t ry ing  

to  ge t  jus t i ce  we los t  one o f  ou r  co l leagues.    Maybe when 

you read the  t ranscr ip t  you w i l l  hea r  the  name,  you w i l l  

come across the  name o f  Vush i  Magots i  [? ] .    He 

unfor tunate l y  succumbed to  depress ion  and the  pressures 

o f  th is  who le  exerc i se  o f  us  ge t t ing  purged by  those tha t  

have powers  to  do  so  on  ou r  l i ves .    

 Even today as  we s i t ,  we s t i l l  ge t t ing  tha t  un fa i r  

t rea tment ,  no t  to  f ina l i se  th is  mat te r  as  speed i ly  as  we can  

so  tha t  we can move on w i th  our  l i ves .   From my own 10 

exper ience I  have t r ied  severa l  t imes to  ge t  work ,  bu t  the  

mere  fac t  tha t  there  i s  th is  th ing  hang ing  on your  caree r  

you won ’ t  ge t  anywhere .     

 So  we are  p lead ing  w i th  the  Commiss ion  to  i f  they  

can,  i f  the  Commiss ion  can ass is t  us .  

 We are  a lso  p lead ing  w i th  the  Commiss ion  Cha i r  

tha t  necessary  documents  to  exerc i se  ou r  r igh ts  be  

ava i led .   I  have ment ioned when we s tar ted  tha t  we never  

had a  c lue  o f  Open Waters  Repor t  o r  P re l im inary  Repor t  as  

purpo r ted  in  Mr  Mokhes i ’s  a f f idav i t ,  why were  we charged.   20 

I f  you needed an  answer  to  var ious quest ions tha t  he  had 

about  anyth ing  in  the  depar tment  we had to  exp la in  to  h im,  

we w i l l  no t  even run  away.    

 I  unders tand f rom h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  we never  came 

to  ass i s t  h im.   The very  same day he dec ided to  suspend  
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us ,  the  Fr iday he  gave us  the  le t te rs ,  wh ich  gagged us  no t  

to  ta lk  to  anyone un less  he  takes h is  phone or  he  wr i tes  to  

us  to  say so  and  so  w i l l  come and consu l t  w i th  you,  g ive  

h im a  hear ing .   We were  never  contac ted ,  he  never  

a t tended as  a  person tha t  be l ieved tha t  the re  were  

wrongdo ings,  he  never  even a t tended the  d isc ip l inary  

hear ing .    Jun ior  o f f i c ia ls  were  sent  there  to  go  and  

unders tand what  i s  happen ing ,  who had note  what  was  

happen ing .     

 Even dur ing  the  road we sa id  we a re  s t i l l  here ,  can 10 

we s i t  down and amicab ly  se t t le  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  

because now we have rea l i sed a f te r  s ix  years  down the  l ine  

tha t  he  has submi t ted  h is  a f f idav i t  in  t ry ing  to  recover  the  

man and he c lea r ly  ident i f ies  who is  respons ib le  fo r  des ign  

approva l  o f  the  sys tem tha t  was there ,  wh ich  means wa i t  a  

b ie t j ie ,  t ime to  see tha t  we are  no t  in  the  wrong,  as  to  Mr  

Mokoena i f  you look a t  the  t ransc r ip t  what  he  sa id  in  h is  

a f f idav i t  th is  week tha t  was submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion  is  

to ta l  cont rad ic t ion  o f  what  he  sa id  dur ing  the  d isc ip l inary  

hear ing .    He to ta l l y  den ied  respons ib i l i t y  o f  the  sys tem,  20 

whereas documents  are  there ,  he  approved the  

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  sys tem,  the  memo,  he  a lso  

ins t ruc ted  and par t i c ipa ted  in  the  war  room and the  Ch ie f  

Account ing  Off i cer  o f  the  depar tment  he  cou ld  no t  spread  

the  account ing  to  a l l  o f  us ,  we w i l l  be  there  to  ass is t  h im 
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and to  say,  po in t  h im in  the  r igh t  d i rec t ion ,  no  th i s  cannot  

be  done,  th is  cannot  be  done,  bu t  the  respons ib i l i t y  to  

make a  f ina l  dec is ion  res t  w i th  h im in  te rms o f  a l l  the  

leg is la t i ve  f ramework .  

 Cha i r  I  saw wh ich  o the r  co l leagues came here  w i th  

our  mat te r  hav ing  been so l ved so  tha t  I  can p lace  a l l  the 

documents  and the  dec is ion  reached by  the  fo rum tha t  we 

are  in  now,  wh ich  is  the  CCMA,  i t  was –  the  en t i re  p rocess 

has cost  us  even  our  pens ions are  over  now,  we are  owing  

our  lawyers  on  the  labour  mat te r.   We cannot  even move  10 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you represented by  lawyers  in  your  

CCMA mat te r?   

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  exp lanat ion  they g ive  you fo r  

the  mat te r  to  take  so  long,  i s  the  CCMA’s  an  o rgan isa t ion  

tha t  i s  requ i red  to  dea l  w i th  d isputes  exped i t ious l y  and you  

are  supposed to  re fer  your  d ismissa l  d ispute  to  the  CCMA 

wi th in  30  days o f   your  d i smissa l  because i t  i s  looked a t  as  

some mat te r  tha t  shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  exped i t ious l y.   Now 20 

i f  you ta lk  about  s ix  years ,  seven years ,  e igh t  years  o f  

such a  mat te r  no t  be ing  f ina l i sed,  espec ia l l y  when you ta lk  

o f  the  mat te r  no t  even hav ing  reached the  s tage  o f  o ra l  

ev idence i t  seems jus t  too  long.   Somet imes these  mat te rs  

can take  as  long as  th is  in  c i rcumstances where  there  has  
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been a  t r i a l ,  there  has been an arb i t ra t ion  bu t  whoever  has 

los t  in  the  arb i t ra t ion  has taken the  mat te r  on  rev iew and 

there  a re  appea ls  to  var ious cour t s .   Somet imes the  

appea ls  go  up  to  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  so  i t  takes ,  i t  can  

take  a  long t ime,  a  number  o f  years  when i t  i s  that  

s i tua t ion  bu t  you sa id  tha t  the  mat te r  has no t  even reached 

a  po in t  where  o ra l  ev idence has been led  and tha t  does 

make the  de lay   very,  ve ry  long to  me.  

 What  exp lanat ion  do  they g i ve  you,  you r  own  

lawyers  because they a re  supposed to  know,  they are  the  10 

ones who a re  supposed to  p ressur ise  the  CCMA,  to  

a l loca te  the  mat te r  a  da te .   What  exp lanat ion  do  they g ive  

you when you say  what ’s  ho ld ing  th ings back?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    F i rs t l y  i t  was the  appo in tment  o f  

Commiss ioners .    You w i l l  ge t  a  Commiss ioner  appo in ted  

on a  mat te r,  bu t  see ing  the  vastness o f  the  ev idence tha t  

he  must  dea l  w i th  he  w i l l  then say no  I  am not  take  th is  

par t i cu la r  case,  tha t  i s  on  the  br ink ,  on  the  br ink  o f  you 

hear ing  the  mat te r  you are  go ing  to  s i t  down on the  mat te r,  

there  w i l l  be  a  recusa l  o f  the  Commiss ioner.  I  th ink  we had 20 

i f  I  am not  m is taken th ree  o r  four  o f  such inc idences.   The 

las t  inc ident  tha t  we had Cha i r  was when we reached an 

agreement  w i th  the  employer  par t y  to  say now tha t   you are  

rev iewing the  scheme wh ich  you  shou ld  have done and  

dec lared i t  un lawfu l  be fore  you charged us ,  can we  wa i t  fo r  
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the  mat te r  to  be  f ina l i sed and i t  took  fo rever  fo r  the  mat te r  

to  be  f ina l i sed.    And then we came back and sa id  no  th i s  

i s  no t  work ing  fo r  us ,  can we now go back to  the  CCMA and  

say le t  us  cont inue and then we cont inue.   Th is  one  

commiss ioner  came there ;  i t  was dur ing  November  he  says  

hey your  mat te r  i s  too  compl ica ted .   We asked h im look 

take  a l l  the  documents ,  the  ev idence tha t  has been 

co l lec ted  because I  mean go ing  back to  ca l l  aga in  a l l  the  

w i tnesses,  tak ing  33  days or  50  day is  go ing  to  cost  us  

money and i t  i s  go ing  to  cost  the  employer  money.   Some 10 

o f  the  w i tnesses  aren ’ t  even there .    Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

passed away,  Ms  F ig i  Magaza passed away so  i f  we need  

to  use those pa r t i cu la r  ind i v idua ls  how are  we go ing  to  

c ross  the  r i ver.  

 A f te r  th ree  months  he  came back and sa id  I  want  to  

hear  the  mat te r  a f resh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  I  suspect  there  may be  a  lo t  o f  

th ings tha t  may have happened wh ich  led  to  the  mat te r  

be ing  wherever  i t  i s  now.  

 S ince you are  represented by  lawyers  I  th ink  tha t  20 

the  f i rs t  th ing  wou ld  be  to  ge t  a  p roper  exp lanat ion  f rom 

the  lawyers ,  have they g i ven you  anyth ing  in  wr i t ing  tha t  

se ts  ou t  exact ly  what  has been happened over  the  past  

seven/e igh t  yea rs ,  a l l  these pages? 

MR MAXATSHWA :    Yes Cha i r  we . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  such a  document?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    There  is  such a  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  i t  here  by  any chance?  

MR MAXATSHWA :    No Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a t  home?  

MR MAXATSHWA:    I t  i s  a t  home,  we can ava i l  i t  to  the 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you see i f  you are  represen ted by  

lawyers  I  am not  sure  tha t  the  Commiss ion  cou ld  no t  do 

much but  I  leave tha t  to  Mr  P re tor ius  and h i s  team but  10 

aga in  i t  i s  no t  the  job  o f  the  Commiss ion  bu t  i t  m igh t  no t  

harm to  f ind  ou t  what  i s  happen ing .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r,  the  mat te r  shou ld  

be  re fer red  to  the  head o f f i ce  o f  the  CCMA,  where  

ar rangements  can be made fo r  spec ia l  appo in tments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  fo r  example  I  wou ld  have expected 

tha t  you r  lawyers  i f  they  were  unhappy w i th  the  Prov inc ia l  

leadersh ip  o f  the  CCMA in  exped i t ing  the  mat te r  I  wou ld  

have expected them to  esca la te  your  concerns  to  the 

Nat iona l  Off i ce  o f  the  CCMA,  bu t  I  speak w i thout  knowing,  20 

maybe they have  done a l l  o f  those th ings,  so  I  th ink  I  w i l l  

l eave the  mat te r  on  the  bas i s  tha t  you w i l l  ta lk  to  Mr  

Pre tor ius  and he w i l l  make h i s  judgment  ca l l  about  what  i f  

any th ing  the  team can do about .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  there  is  a  second issue tha t  
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may be re levant  to  the  Commiss ion ’s  work  and  tha t  i s  

whethe r  there  is  any l ink  be tween  the  o f f i c ia ls  in  the  Free 

S ta te  and the  de lays  in  the  CCMA,  i t  may be wor th  

invest iga t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   The las t  th ing  I  wanted to  say Mr  

Maxatshwa in  regard  to  th is  mat te r  i s  tha t  i t  is  qu i te  

concern ing  tha t  a  lo t  o f  money tha t  had been se t  as ide  fo r  

the  purposes o f  bu i ld ing  houses fo r  peop le  seems to  have 

ended up in  var ious –  in  the  hands  o f  var ious supp l ie rs  and  

maybe cont rac tors ,  more  than R500mi l l ion  I  th ink  I  was to ld  10 

by  Mr  Mokets i  and ye t  no  houses were  bu i l t  in  regard  to  

tha t  par t i cu la r  a l loca t ion  fo r  tha t  f inanc ia l  yea r,  2010 to  

2011 and the  money shou ld  have benef i t ted  ord inary  

peop le ,  they shou ld  have got  house but  they d idn ’ t  ge t  any 

houses and ye t  government  had se t  as ide  a  huge  amount  

o f  money,  R1.3b i l l i on ,  i t  i s  very  concern ing ,  because a  

government  i s  there  to  ensure  tha t  the  peop le  ge t  the  

serv i ces  they need.  

 Now i t  i s  no t  jus t  th is  mat te r  where  I  am hear ing  

th is  k ind  o f  ev idence,  where  a  lo t  o f  money has been se t  20 

as ide  fo r  th ings to  be  done tha t  wou ld  benef i t  peop le  bu t  

the  money ends up w i th  o ther  peop le  and the  peop le  who 

are  supposed to  have benef i t ted  f rom tha t  money or  what  

was to  be  used,  what  tha t  money was to  be  used fo r  do  no t  

ge t  anyth ing .     
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 Wi th in  the  contex t  o f  the  Free S ta te  I  heard  a  few 

weeks ago ev idence re la t ing  to  what  we have te rmed the  

asbestos  pro jec t  where  the  documents  tha t  were  issued by  

the  Depar tment  o f  Human Set t lements ,  same depar tment ,  

ind ica ted  tha t  they were  g iv ing  a  cont rac t  to  a  cer ta in  jo in t  

venture  in  o rder  to  u l t imate ly  remove asbestos  f rom the  

roo fs  o f  va r ious houses because i t  i s  dangerous and  so  on .   

I  heard  ev idence  tha t  the  job  cou ld  have been done w i th  

R21mi l l ion  bu t  the  Prov inc ia l  Government  gave th is  

par t i cu la r  jo in t  venture  about  R250mi l l ion  fo r  a  R21mi l l ion  10 

job .  

 On the  ev idence  I  have heard  so  fa r  there  i s  very  

l i t t le ,  i f  any  work  tha t  the  jo in t  venture  d id ,  i t  jus t  go t  sub-

cont rac tors ,  ac tua l l y  the  second –  the  f i rs t  sub-cont rac tor  

a lso  d id  no t  do  any job ,  on ly  the  th i rd  sub-cont rac tor  d id  

the  job .   The jo in t  venture  and the  f i rs t  sub-cont rac tor  jus t  

pocketed the  money but  to  make  i t  worse  there  was no 

remova l  o f  asbestos  f rom the  roo fs  o f  the  houses o f  

peop le .   There  was s imp ly  the  count ing  o f  houses tha t  

happened.  20 

 Leave tha t  as ide .   I  have heard  ev idence abou t  

what  has been re fer red  to  as  the  Vrede Da i ry  Farm,  the  

Est ina  Pro jec t ,  tha t  i s  we l l  known.    A pro jec t  tha t  was 

meant  to  be  benef i t  a  lo t  o f  b lack  fa rmers ,  peop le  who  

wanted to  do  fa rm ing to  earn  a  l i v ing ,  the re  too  the  peop le  
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who were  supposed to  be  benef ic ia r ies ,  to  benef i t  f rom tha t  

p ro jec t  I  heard  ev idence tha t  they  never  go t  anyth ing  and 

ye t  m i l l i ons  and mi l l ions  and gran ts  were  pa id  ou t  by  the  

government ,  Free S ta te  Prov inc ia l  Government ,  and tha t  

money ended in  the  hands o f  o ther  peop le  and the  rea l  

peop le  who were  supposed to  benef i t  d id  no t  ge t  anyth ing .   

I t  i s  very  concern ing .    

 Th is  does not  necessar i l y  mean the  Free S ta te  

Prov inc ia l  Government  was the  wors t ,  because we have not  

had ev idence f rom o the r  p rov inces and how o ther  10 

Prov inc ia l  Governments  worked and we w i l l  no t  because  

tha t  k ind  o f  job  needs years  to  do ,  so  we w i l l  no t  know but  

my own th ink ing  is  tha t  i f  one went  a round the  p rov inces 

one wou ld  f ind  a  lo t  o f  p ro jec ts  where  money tha t  was 

supposed to  bene f i t  o rd ina ry  peop le  ends up in  the  pockets  

o f  some peop le  and the  ord inary  peop le  ge ts  no th ing .   I t  is  

very  wor ry ing .  

 So I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t ,  tha t  as  I  hear  a l l  o f  

th is  ev idence he re  is  someth ing  tha t  t roub les  me qu i te  a  

lo t ,  because the  peop le  who were  supposed to  be  taken  20 

care  o f  end up rece iv ing  no  bene f i t s  and ye t  the i r  money  

because i t  i s  taxpayers  money,  ge ts  pa id  to  o ther  peop le .  

 I  jus t  –  Mr  Maxatshwa you might  no t  be  ab le  to  say  

anyth ing  and I  am not  inv i t ing  you to  say anyth ing ,  I  am 

jus t  say ing  tha t  i t  i s  most  f rus t ra t i ng  to  hear  what  I  hear  in  
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th is  Commiss ion  and there  seems to  be  no ind ica t ions tha t  

i t  i s  s lowing down,  ins tead i t  looks  l i ke  there ’s  some peop le  

who say they don ’ t  care ,  they w i l l  a lso  ge t  the i r  fa i r  sha re .  

 We wi l l  ca l l  you  i f  we need  you aga in  Mr  

Maxatshwa,  thank you very  much fo r  coming to  g ive  

ev idence.    You are  now excused.  

MR MAXATSHWA :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Pre tor ius ,  i s  tha t  the  end o f ,  the  las t  

o f  you r  w i tnesses  fo r  today?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes Cha i r,  and we w i l l  resume,  by  10 

your  leave,  ten  o ’ c lock  on  Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and who is  you r  w i tness,  o r  who 

are  your  w i tnesses on Fr iday?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l  tha t ’s  a  mat te r  s t i l l  to  be 

f ina l l y  de termined but  the  ve ry  l east  Mr  Zwane w i l l  be  

present .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

the  day and we w i l l  resume on Fr iday a t  ten  o ’c lock .  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 25 SEPTEMBER 2020  

 

 

 


